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A. AUTHORITY FOR RESTRAINT OF PETITIONER

The petitioner, william Neal France, is restrained pursuant to

a plea of guilty to nine counts of felony harassment and six "officer

of the court as a victim" aggravators. Appendix A.

B. ISSUES PRESENTED

1. Can the defendant challenge his conviction after he pled

guilty in a negotiated plea that required him to agree to his criminal

offense history, offender score and standard range?

2. ls the "unit of prosecution" for felony harassment each

independent threat made by a perpetrator, or can a perpetrator

make threats to the Same victim on innumerable occasions, and

over an infinite period of time, knowing he can face but a single

charge?

C. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

over the course of a two month period, the defendant, a

former client of The Defender Association (TDA), threatened

attorney Anita Paulsen, attorney Lisa Daugaard, and social worker

Nina Beach multiple times using some of the most vial threats and

language the three had ever heard in the course of their jobs as

defense attorneys and a social worker' Each call was recorded'
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After his case was assigned out for trial, the defendant

decided to plead guilty in a carefully crafted plea agreement.

Despite agreeing to his criminal history, offender score and

standard range as a condition of his plea agreement, in his petition,

for the first time, the defendant asserts that the charges to which he

pled guilty violate double jeopardy principles, that he could only be

convicted of three counts - one count for each victim. This, the

defendant posits, is what the legislature intended as the "unit of

prosecution." Thus, according to the defendant, a perpetrator can

threaten a victim on multiple occasions and over any length of time

and be subjected to but a single count of harassment, regardless of

the number of times the victim is threatened or the harm caused'

This court should reject the defendant's attempt to challenge

his conviction because his guilty plea contained specific conditions

that he now is attempting to circumvent. ln addition, this Court

should reject the defendant's strained interpretation of the

harassment statute. The defendant's interpretation of the statute is

not dictated by the language of the statute, it does not effectuate

the legislative purpose of the statute, it would lead to absurd results

and it would essentially turn the harassment statute into the stalking

statute. lnstead, the "unit of prosecution" that is most true to the

1605-11 FranceCOA
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statutory language and effectuates the legislative intent is that each

independent threat is a chargeable act.

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

1, PROCEDURAL FACTS

The defendant was charged as follows:

Count Charqe
1

2
3
4
5
6
7
I
I
10
11

12
13
14
15
16

Felony Harassment
Felony Harassment
Felony Harassment
Felony Harassment
Felony Harassment
Felony Harassment
Felony Harassment
Felony Harassment
Felony Harassment
Felony Harassment
Felony Harassment
Felony Harassment
Felony Harassment
Felony Harassment
Felony Harassment
Felony Harassment

Victim
Anita Paulsen
Anita Paulsen
Anita Paulsen
Anita Paulsen
Anita Paulsen
Anita Paulsen
Lisa Daugaard
Lisa Daugaard
Lisa Daugaard
Lisa Daugaard
Lisa Daugaard
Nina Beach
Nina Beach
Nina Beach
Nina Beach
Nina Beach

Violation Date
12t1110
12126110
12128110
1110t11
1112111
1125111

1111111
1t12110
1125111
1125111
1129111
12128110
12128110
1112111
1125111

1129111

Appendix B. Each count carried a "deliberate cruelty to the victim"

aggravator. ld.; RCW 9.94A'535(3Xa) Counts 1 through 11

carried an ,,officer of the court as victim" aggravator. ld. Rcw

9.94A.535(3Xx)

on octobe r 18,2011 , the defendant's case was assigned to

trial before the Honorable Judge Steven Gonzalez' Appendix C'

The next day, the defendant decided to plead guilty. Appendix D.

1605-11 France COA
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The defendant entered a negotiated plea with the following terms

and conditions:

The defendant agreed to plead guilty to counts 3, 4 & 6

(Public Defender Anita Paulsen was the victim), counts 7, 8 & I

(Public Defender Lisa Daugaard was the victim) and counts 12,14

& 15 (Social Worker Nina Beach was the victim)' The State agreed

to dismiss counts 1,2,5, 10, 11, 13 and 16, and the deliberate

cruelty aggravator on all counts. The defendant agreed to plead

guilty to the officer of the court as a victim aggravator on counts 3,

4,6,7,8 and 9. APPendix E.

The plea documents included a scoring form and a list of all

of the defendant's current and prior criminal convictions' ld' The

defendant's offender Score was calculated as a 14 on each count;

6 points for his prior felony convictions and 8 points for the eight

other current felony harassment convictions. ld. ln entering his

plea, the defendant specifically agreed that "the attached

sentencing guidelines scoring form(s)..., offender score, and the

attached Prosecutor's Understanding of Defendant's Criminal

History...are accurate and complete'" !sL1

, ln his presentence report submitted to the sentencing judge, the defendant

,gri. 
"if^"wteOgeO 

that his offender score was a 14' Appendix F'

-4-
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The state's sentence recommendation was for 60 months on

each count. The counts against each victim would be served

concurrently (3, 4 & 6 together, 7, 8, & 9 together, and 12,14, & 15

together). Based on the officer of the court as a victim aggravator,

each group of three would be served consecutive to each other

group of three, for a total sentence of 180 months. ld. This is the

exact sentence that the defendant received, although the court

added as a basis for imposing an exceptional sentence, the "free

crimes" aggravator. Appendix A; RCW 9.94A'535(2)'2

The defendant appealed the imposition of his exceptional

sentence. This Court affirmed the imposition of the exceptional

sentenCe, remanded the case to correCt Some sCrivener errOrs in

the judgment and sentence, and issued a mandate on March 21,

2014. Appendix G.

, Using the agreed criminal history, offender score and standard range, the

defeniant asied for a "drug offender sentence alternative" or DOSA, that would

nrr" gr.n the defendant isentence of just over 27 months confinement - by

itatutE, half the midpoint of the standard range. Appendix F; RCW 9'94A.660'

-5-
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2. SUBSTANTIVE FACTS

ln pleading guilty, the defendant admitted to leaving the

following messages for Anita Paulsen:3

Count 3, December 28, 2010: Hey Anita bitch, how yeah

doin'? This is France again. Did you get my message this

morning? were you in, were you in the closets over at the King

County, King County Courthouse, in the closet with some

mothe*ucker suckin' some mo, suckin' more cock so you can make

more money? Huh? You out suckin' more cock? Huh? Suckin'

dick, huh? You're a good dick suckin' bitch, aren't yeah? Plus

you're a snitch bitch. Yeah, well I got a surprise for you when I get

out a jail bitch. l'm gonna take a hold a yea]-l, l'm. gonna grab a

hold i yeah and rip your fuckin' shirt right off yegf so.l can see

those Uit titt of youri. I wanna see them big fuckin' tits you've got'

I wanna maybe even suck on 'em, suck on 'em and see how you

fuckin'feet bitch. See, huh? Then maybe bend you over and stick

my dick in your ass. Fuck you in your ass, yeah. why I'm suckin'

on yorr tits. Yeah. Just do it right in the main street, right o1 thg

sidewalk. Bitch, I got surprises for you, you snitchin' motherfuckin'

bitch. you just fuclin' wait. When I get out, you gonna get a whole

tot of it. A whole lot a my cock up in your ass'

Count4,January10,2011:HeyAnita,thisisFrance
calling ya. You got such a sweet voice, you know it? I bet you got

soris*"et lips too to go around my fuckin' cock. Suck my dick

when I want, when I want you to. You know that I got a shit

sandwich for you? Yeah, when I see you on the stre.ets. I get out

in nine monthl, bitch. None mother fucking months l'm getting out'

You got it? And l'm going to be, l'm going to be all over you like

stink-on shit, bitch. ! got I shit sandwich for you. Oh yeah. 
. 
You

don,t think this is all going to happen? You fucked off. You're a

worthless, fucking tawyei. You brung shit on me that came out of

Chehalis and should lrave never came up. Eleven fucking years

3 ln his plea of guilty, the defendant confessed that he "placed the calls that are

containia in pr[+riit exhibit 1." Pre-Trial Exhibit 1 is a CD that contains the

""tr"f 
t".ordings of the defendant's messageg, ?S well as.a transcript of all the 

.

;;i;;& t, t-he defendant. The quotations below are all taken from the exhibit

and pertain to the counts to which the defendant pled guilty'

1605-11 FranceCOA
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old. You understand? Eleven fucking years old, period. lt should
have stayed in the archives, you dumb bitch. You're stupid. You're
really fucking stupid. I didn't want to hear nothing about that shit in

Chehalis ever again. I walked out of that fucking jail and I got that
mother fucker behind me. You wanted to bring it up in court.

You're a worthless bitch, Anita. You',re worthless. And l'm going to

stick a fucking shit sandwich down your fucking throat when I get

out of prison. l'm going to find ya. I'm going to do. l'm going to

walk right up to you and !'m going to shove it right down your

fucking-throat. count on it, bitch. lt's a dream come true. Don',t

think l;m not going to do it because I will do it. You have a nice

fucking tife until I get out, which is nine months away'

Count 6, January 25,2011: Hey Paulsen' This is France

again. You ain't scared yet? You better be. You better be, you

n[tter quiverin' in them fuckin', those panties you got on. You're

gonna be quiverin' in that pussy you got in between your legs.

[ecarre what you did to me in fuckin' court while I was in jail,

you're gonna be, you're, you're, you're fuckin' gonna, you're gonna

pay the-price. I got nine more months to go and I'm out a this

,otn"rfr.kin' plice. Nine fuckin' months and I'm gonna check you

out. t'm gonna find out where the fuck you live 3nd-lhe whole ball a

*.i. V"6. lt's time for me to put a bullet in yeah. Not kill yeah, just

put a buliet in yeah. lf you know what the phrase is-. Not kill Your -
just make you walk with a fuckin' limp for the rest of your fuckin' life'

And if you'rin't scared now, you better be in nine motherfuckin'

monthi bitch. Take heed, I'll be back. l'll be out there pretty soon'

Ha, ha, ha, ha, ha, ha. You worthless nigger bitch'

ln pleading guilty, the defendant admitted to leaving the

following messages for Lisa Daugaard:

GountT,Januaryl'1.,2011:HeyLisa,thisisFrance'ln
nine months you're going to be available because you got a bullet

witn youf fuc'fing nJme on it, bitch. Don't interfere with anything

t,m Obing on the-phone with fucking Paulsen. You got that? Or

Nina bitdh. Got that? You got, you got that? Get it up your cunt,

bitch. Get wise. Don't be stuPid.

1605-11 France COA
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Count 8, January 12,2011: Yeah, well Lisa, this is France

again. I'm trying to get a hold of you. Apparently some man came

to my door and told me that you're my, you was my fucking lawyer

at one point and time. You've never been my lawyer. Okay. That I

can remember. Okay. Ah, as far as it goes by, by me, me pursuing

what l,ve told you what l'm going to do. Yes. I got nine fucking

months. And I got a surprise for you. Okay. Like I said, you got a

fucking bullet with your fucking name on it, bitch. So does Paulsen.

okay. she's going to eat a shit sandwich first because l'm going to

put ii right in tie fuckin' kneecap. And I'm going to cut your bra off

when llee you in the mother fucking hallway or in the.fucking

elevator. Wnen I first put sights on you, bitch, l'm cutting your bra

right off you. And t'm going to do it. I don't give a.fuck what the

c6ns"quences. you got in my fucking position. Y-oy.Oot in my

program. So eat shitind die, bitch' Got it? Huh? Ya got it?

Gount 9, January 25,2011: Hey Lisa, this is Mr' France

callin, you again. what the fuck possesses you to call the

penitentiary, and talk to some fat motherfucker that comes to my

iuckin' door tellin' me that you used to be my fuckin' lawyer. You've

never been my fuckin' lawyer, you, you fuckin' (unintelligible)

ignorant tramf. You stupid bitch. And what all l've been sayin'

iOout how, what l'm gonna do to yeah, l'm gonna put a fuckin'

bullet in your fuckin' lineecap when I see yeah on the streets'

You are developing a big pain in my motherfuckin'dick and

the only way to get rid of ihe pain in my dick is if I put a bullet in

vouigjoorrn tin"ecap, and male sure you walk around, wobble

,rorriO for a while. You know? Stay in a wheelchair for a while is

what you deserve you little nigger bitch. cause l'm gonna get you

wnen't get out. This is affirmitive. This is like ball, this is a ballpark

field. Y-ou know? lt's, it's a homerun bitch. You know? And like

uh, uh I'm pretty pissed off at yeah. Real mad. Real mad, l'm mad

as a motherfuct<er. Mad as a motherfucker' l'm really fuckin' mad'

And l've never been so mad since, at a bitch, my whole fuckin' life

like I am at you.

You are, are history. You're gonna hit, you're gonna hit the

motherfuckin' wheelchair ieal soon. Soon as I get out. And I know

*nrt you look like. You're not gonna know what the fuck I look like,

but t'm gonna find out what the fuck you look like. You fuckin' right

1605-11 France COA
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! am. As soon as ! do, ha, ha, ha, oh yeah, you're fuckin'gonna get

it. You,re gonna get it on the slide side. comin' out an elevator,
pow, right in the fuckin' kneecap...and l'm gonna walk away. Oh

i'm gonna make sure sweetheart' A good gun don't m.ake a lot a

noisl see. I got a be professional. You can get anything you want

on the street if you got the fuckin' money. Anything you want.

Anything. lt don't matter what the fuck it is. Anything you want you

can get.

Uh just remember, l'm gonna be seein'you in about nine

motherfuckin' months. Do you hear me Lisa? Yeah, 'bout nine

motherfuckin' months. And l'm gonna get yeah, get you, get you'

good. Think about bitch, while you sit there, think hard about it how

i't,. gonn, fuckin' feel. Uh, huh. Or that I can just put a cut in your

tit, j;st cut your tits. You know? Cut your motherfuckin' bra off and

criyort tit. Ha, ha, ha, ha, ha. Make it bleed baby, like your

prsiy. you sometimes bleed out of the pussy don't yeah? Yeah, I

6uiv'o, oo. I like to lick it up. Yeah cause that's how I am. I like to

lick lhe pussy when it's on the rag, when bitches are on the rag.

you,re 6n th6 fuckin' rag bitch, l'llfind you when you're on the rag

and l'll eat your pussy and put my dick in your booty' Ha' ha' ha

(unintelligible)...

ln pleading guilty, the defendant admitted to leaving the

following messages for Nina Beach:

Count 12, Decem ber 28, 2010: Nina' You're nothing but a

snitching fucking bitch. You know that? A rotten fucking nigger.

This is France calling you, cunt. when I get out of jail, l've got a

surprise for you. A fiid fucking surprise. When I see you come out

of t'hat fucking buildin!, I'm going to grab a hold of you and rip your

iucking shirt iight off yL, becluse I want to see them big brown

tuciin! tits, biilh. Because you're fucking mine, when I get out.
you hear me, you nigger OitinZ You rotten snitching fucking bltch.

I got a letter fr6m Lisiielling me I've been harassing you. I didn't

nliass your fucking ass. A[ least you could have done is wrote me

a fucking letter and told me that you couldn't help me' But you

didn't wint to do that. You want to be a stupid nigger bitch' And

!'m out to get ya. Believe it. I'm going to get ya' I get out in a

1605-11 FranceCOA
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fucking year, bitch. And l'm going to get you. l'm going to get you

good.

Gount 14, January 12,2011: How come you never answer
your fucking phone, your worthless black fucking nigger bitch? This

is France. And by the way, you think for one fucking minute of what

I'm telling you on the fucking phone, and been telling you on the

fucking plhbne, won't come true? My dreams come true, bitch. And

when iget out in nine mother fucking months, l'm going to stalk

you. tnine right place, the right time. I'm cutting your fucking bra

iignt of you, bitch. And l'm going to put a shit sandwich down your

*-oth"t fircking throat. Count on it, bitch. lt's like a deposit in the

fucking bank. You worthless nigger bitch. You're worthless'

You're-worthless fucking nigger bitch. But you do got nice titties'

You do got some nice tits.

count 15, Janua ry 25,2011: lt,s more like Nina bitch. You

know Nina bitch. Yeah Nina, this is France again. How you gonna

feel when I suck on your fuckin' black tits and I put my white cock in

your assz Huh? cause I'm gonna stalk the bitch when I get out.

i,, gonn, find out where theluck you live. And l'm gonna fuckin'

ki.fyorr fuckin' door in and have my, l'm gonna have some fuckin'

tun *itn you. Oh l'm gonna have some motherfuckin'fun with you

Uit.n. you're nothingtut a worthless tramp, fuck!1'.worthless cunt,

motherfuckin'snitchtitcn and ! don't like snitchin' bitches'

So take heed, if you ain't scared now, you're gonna be in

nine fuckin' months when I get out of, when I get out a, get out a

pii.on. Cause l'm gonna, l'm gonna fuck your whole. world up

bitcn. l'm gonna fuikin' suck on them tits. l'm puttin' my white cock

in yor, ,rs] on yeah. And if you smell good enough, I might eat

yoliprsy. I doh't know yet,That's a, that's a tosser, but I will put

my Oicf inyour ass thougl,. mats for goddam.n su19' How does it

teet to be called a fuckin;nigger? Huh? How does it feel to be

called a fuckin' snitch bitchi Huh? t didn't, I didn't, I wasn't

harassin' you and I wasn't threatenin' you: I just wanted to get your

fuckin' help on some ssl, but you wouldn't even write me back and

tett me what the fuck is going on. You're a worthless motherfuckin'

cunt man. You're worth'less and I'm gonna get yeah. Get yeah.

|,m gonna keep callin,yeah and lettin,you know that you got a

rabbit on your ass and l'm gonna chew you up'

1605-1'l France COA
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E. ARGUMENT

1. THE DEFENDANT WAIVED ANY DOUBLE
JEOPARDY CLAIM

The defendant entered into a negotiated plea dealwherein

he specifically agreed to his criminal history - including his current

offenses, offender Score and standard range on each count. The

sentence recommendations by the defendant and by the State

were based on these agreed facts and conditions of the plea. By

entering the specific agreement he did, the defendant waived any

double jeopardy claim. ln addition, a double jeopardy violation

must be clear from the plea documents that were before the trial

court, and no such violation is evident here.

Under the double jeopardy clauses of the United states

Constitution and article l, section 9 of the Washington Constitution,

the State may not punish a defendant multiple times for the same

offense unless permitted so by the legislature' State v' Huqhes,

166 Wn.2d 675, 681 , 212 P.3d 558 (2009).

The double jeopardy clause applies in a number of

situations. lt protects against a second prosecution for the same

offense after acquittal. United states v. Ball, 163 U.S. 662, 16 S.

ct. 1192,41L. Ed. 3OO (1896). lt protects against a second
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prosecution for the Same offense after conviction. ln re Nielsen,

131 U.S. 176, I S. Ct. 672,33 L. Ed. 118 (1889)' lt protects

against multiple punishments under different statutes for the same

offense obtained in a single trial where not allowed by the

legislature. See. e.q., State v. Kier, 164 Wn.2d 798, 194 P '3d 212

(2008) (convictions for first-degree robbery and second-degree

assault based on the same act violates double jeopardy), and State

v. calle, 125 Wn.2d 769,772,888 P.2d 155 (1995) (legislature

intended that a single act of sexual intercourse can be punished

under both the incest statute and the rape statute). And finally, as

applicable here, the double jeopardy clause protects an accused

from being charged with multiple counts under the same statute

where the legislature has defined the punishable conduct to

encompass all of the charged acts, the so-called "unit of

prosecution" of the statute' See. e'q., State v' Sutherby, 165

wn.2d 870, 880, 204 P.3d 916 (2009) (the unit of prosecution for

possession of child pornography is one count for all of the

photographs possessed, regardless of the number of photographs
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possessed or the number of children depicted in the images); State

v. Furseth, 156Wn. App. 516,520-22,233 P.3d 902 (under

Sutherby, the State was barred from charging more than a single

count of child pornography despite Furseth's possession of multiple

photographs containing child pornography), rev. denied, 170 wn.2d

1007 (2010).

when a person pleads guilty, the plea generally insulates a

defendant's conviction from collateral attack. see Tollett v.

Henderson,411 U.S. 258,267,93 S. Ct. 1602,36 L' Ed' 2d235

(1973). For example, a guilty plea waives "constitutional rights that

inhere in a criminal trial, including the right to trial by jury, the

protection against self-incrimination, and the right to confront one's

accusers." Floridav. Nixon,543 U.S. 175,187,125 S. Ct.551,160

L. Ed. 2d 565 (2004).

The right to be free from double jeopardy is a right that may

be waived in certain situations. See United States v. Broce, 488

U.S. 563, 565, 1Og S. Ct.757,102L. Ed, 2d 927 (1989); Menna v'

NewYork,423 U.S. 61, 63, 96 S. CL.241,46 L. Ed. 2d 195 (1975)'

Examples include situations where a defendant asks for separate

trials on a greater and its lesser offense, where a defendant obtains

a retrial after an appeal of a conviction, or where a defendant
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obtains a mistrial and a new trial is had. ln each case, a second

prosecution for the same offense occurs but the double jeopardy

clause does not prohibit the second trial. Jeffers v. United States,

432 U.S. 137, 152,97 S. Ct. 2207,53 L. Ed. 168 (1977)-

ln the context of a guilty plea, a defendant may waive a

double jeopardy claim by explicit waiver or he may do so through

his actions in negotiating a plea agreement. See ln re Shale, 160

wn.2d 489, 5OO-01, 158 P.3d 588 (2007) (Madsen concurrence).

An express waiver is not required. Broce, 488 U.S. at 573. As the

supreme court has stated, "the Double Jeopardy clause, which

guards against Government oppression, does not relieve a

defendant from the consequences of his voluntary choice'" United

States v. Scott, 437 U.S. 82, 99, 98 S. CL.2187,57 L' Ed' 2d 65

(1e78).

ln addition, in the context of a double jeopardy claim

involving a guilty plea, any double jeopardy violation must be clear

from the record that was presented to the trial court, or it is waived'

state v. Kniqht , 162Wn.2d 806, 81 1 , 174 P.3d 1167 (2008) (citing
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@,488 U.S. at 575-76).4 A "guilty plea prevents a defendant

from expanding the record to prove two convictions actually stem

from a single conspiracY." !4., accord ln re Newlun, 158 Wn. App'

28, g3-34,240 P.3d 795 (2010) (documents from police report

attached to defendant's reply brief were not before the trial court

and could not be considered). lt is only where a plea "judged on its

face" contains a charge which the State may not constitutionally

prosecute, that a guilty plea does not constitute waiver' Menna v'

New York, 423 U.S. at 63 n'2'

Thus, while a guilty plea by itself does not constitute a

waiver or a bar to collateral attack for all types of double jeopardy

claims, it does here. First, the defendant waived any double

jeopardy claim by specifically agreeing as a condition of his plea to

the accuracy of his criminal record -- including his current offenses,

his offender score on each count and his standard range on each

count. Second, as will be explained in more detail in the sections

a Like here, Broce was a unit of prosecution case. Broce pled guilty to multiple

counts of coffiracy. Later, he iried to collaterally attack his conviction arguing

tf'at nL muftipf convictions constituted but one offense. The Supreme Court

n"jO tn"t Broce's double jeopardy challenge was foreclosed by his guilty plea

O"*r." 'L11ust as a OefeirOant wlro pteaOi guilty.to a.single count admits guilt to

tne speciti!'O offense, so too does a defendint who pleads guilty to two counts

witn iaciat allegations of distinct offenses concede that he has committed two

i"p.rri" crimds.' Broie, 488 U.S._at 570..While an exception to waiver might

nave applied to BrocFcase, the Court noted that it was not clear from the

i".oiJ ihata double jeoparOy violation had occurred and therefore no exception

to waiver aPPlied. Broce, at 569.
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below, the documents before the trial court do not clearly evidence

a double jeopardy violation even if this Court were to accept what

the defendant's claims constitutes a "unit of prosecution" under the

harassment statute.

ln asserting he can bring his double jeopardy claim despite

his plea agreement, the defendant relies on state v. Kniqht, w,

and ln re Francis.s Both cases are clearly distinguishable.

ln Knight, the defendant pled guilty to conspiracy to commit

burglary, conspiracy to commit robbery and conspiracy to commit

murder. ln a subsequent collateral attack, the court held that

Knight's guilty plea did not constitute a waiver of Knight's double

jeopardy claim where the plea agreement simply called for Knight

to agree to testify in a co-defendant's trial and to plead guilty to

certain charges while the State agreed to dismiss other pending

charges. By pleading guilty, Knight fulfilled the terms of the plea

agreement. The subsequent double jeopardy challenge did not

violate the conditions of the plea. Additionally, the double jeopardy

violation was clear from the plea documents' see Knight' gupra'

!n !n re Francis, the defendant pled guilty to felony murder,

attempted first-degree robbery and second-degree assault. when

u 170 wn.2d 517,242 P.3d 866 (2010).
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Francis raised her double jeopardy claim, the State asserted that

the simple fact of her entering a plea of guilty waived the issue.

The Supreme Court disagreed, stating that "the mere act of

pleading guilty does not waive a double jeopardy challenge'"

Additionally, "[b]ecause the State expressly relied on the second

degree assault conduct to elevate the attempted robbery to the first

degree when it charged the crimes, convictions on both charges

violate double jeopardy protections." k!= a|521.

ln contrast to the situations in Kniqht and Francis, the

defendant here did more than simply enter pleas of guilty. The

Statement on Plea of Guilty contained the following statement:

The standard sentence range is based on the crime

charged and my criminal history..'[t]he prosecuting

attoriey,s statement of my criminal history is attached

to this igreement. Unless I have attached a different

statement, I agree that the prosecuting attorney's

statement is correct and complete.

Appendix E at 3.

The Plea Agreement contained the following condition:

The defendant agrees to this Plea Agreement and

that the attached sentencing guidelines scoring

form(s) (Appendix A), offender score, and the

attached Piosecutor's Understanding of Defendant's

Criminal History (Appendix B) are accurate and

complete and that the defendant was represented by

counsel or waived counsel at the time of prior

conviction(s). The State makes the sentencing
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recommendation set forth in the State's sentence
recommendation. An essential term of this
agreement is the parties' understanding of the
standard sentencing range(s), if the parties are
mistaken as to the offender score on any count,
neither party is bound by any term of this agreement.

Appendix E. with the defendant's specific affirmative agreements

he did exactly what the Supreme Court notes constitutes waiver, he

took affirmative steps and entered into a voluntary plea that

evidences waiver.

2. THE LEGISLATURE DID NOT INTEND FOR A
DEFENDANT TO BE ABLE TO THREATEN A
VICTIM WITH IMPUNITY AND FACE BUT A
SINGLE CHARGE

The defendant contends that for all the many acts of

harassment he committed against each of his defenseless victims,

he can only be charged and convicted of a single count of

harassment per victim. More specifically, the defendant contends

that in enacting the harassment statute, the legislature intended

that no matter how many times a defendant threatens a victim, and

no matter how many days, months or even years the threats

cOntinue, the "unit of prosecution" under the harassment Statute iS

one count per victim. This claim must be rejected'

what constitutes a "unit of prosecution" under a statute is a

pure question of legislative intent and the legislature could never

-18_
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have intended such an absurd result, allowing a victim to be

victimized over and over and over again with no additional

consequences to his or her abuSer. The "unit of prosecution" under

the statute is each separate act of threatening a victim' Nothing

else properly protects victims, holds defendants accountable for

their actions, is true to the statutory language, is consistent with

cases interpreting other statutes, and fosters the legislature's goal

of preventing harassing and stalking behavior.

when a defendant is convicted of violating one statute

multiple times, the proper double jeopardy inquiry is what "unit of

prosecution" has the legislature intended as the punishable act

under the specific criminal statute. state v. Adel, 136 Wn.2d 629,

633-34, 965 P.2d 1072(1998); Bell v. United States, 349 U.S. 81,

83,75 S. Ct.620, 99 L. Ed.9O5 (1955). Here, the question is, what

act or course of conduct has the legislature defined as the

punishable act under the harassment statute, RCW 9A.46'020.

The principal focus in determining whether the legislature

intended multiple acts to constitute but one crime is whether the

legislature intended the punishable offense to be a continuing

offense. Ex parte snow, 120 U.5.274,7 S. Ct. 556, 30 L. Ed. 658
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(1887). This is in contrast to statutes aimed at offenses that can be

committed t)no actu, or in a single act' Snow, 120 U.S. at 286.

ln Snow, the defendant was convicted of three counts of

bigamy, each count identical in all respects except that each count

covered a different time span that was part of a continuous period

of time. snow, 120 U.S. at276. The court noted that bigamy is

,,inherenfly a continuous offense, having duration, and not an

offense consisting of an isolated act." Snow , at2SL Because

bigamy is a continuing offense, the Court held that the defendant

committed but one offense.

ln contrast is the situation that existed in Ebelins v. Morqan,

237 U.S.625,35 S. Ct.710,59 L' Ed. 1151 (1915)' Ebeling cut

open seven mail bags that were held in a single railway postal car'

For this, Ebeling was convicted of seven counts of feloniously

injuring a mail bag. Rejecting Ebeling's claim that he committed but

a single offense, the Court noted that the offense of injuring a mail

bag was nof one continuous offense, rather, each offense was

complete irrespective of any attack upon any other mail bag.

Morqan, 237 U.S. at 629. lt was not, the cOurt noted, "continuous

offenses where the crime is necessarily, and because of its nature,
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a single one, though committed over a period of time." ld' at

629-30.

!n pertinent part, the harassment statute reads as follows:

(1) A person is guilty of harassment if:

(a) Without lawful authority, the person knowingly
threatens'.

(i) To cause bodily injury immediately or in the
future to the person threatened or to any other
person; or

(ii) To cause physical damage to the property

of a person other than the actor; or

(iii) To subject the person threatened or any

other person to physical confinement or
restraint; or

(iv) Maliciously to do any other act which is
intended to substantially harm the person

threatened or another with respect to his or her
physical or mental health or safety; and

(b) The person by words or conduct places the
person threatened in reasonable fear that the

threat will be carried out.. '

(2) (a) Except as provided in (b) of this subsection, a' ' 
person who harasses another is guilty of a gross

misdemeanor.

(b) A person who harasses another is guilty 
-of 

a

itiss C felony if any of the following apply: (i) The

person has previously been convicted in this or

any other state of any crime of harassment, as

deiined in RCW 9A.46.060, of the same victim or

members of the victim's family or household or
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any person specifically named in a no-contact or
no-harassment order; (ii) the person harasses
another person under subsection (1)(aXi) of this
section by threatening to kill the person threatened
or any other person; (iii) the person harasses a

criminaljustice participant who is performing his or
her official duties at the time the threat is made; or
(iv) the person harasses a criminaljustice
participant because of an action taken or decision
made by the criminaljustice participant during the
performance of his or her official duties. . '

RCW 9A.46.020.

ln State v. Alvarez,o the Supreme Court was tasked with

looking at what act or acts could be charged under the harassment

statute. Alvarez was convicted of one count of harassment against

a neighbor for telling her to "shut up bitch or l'll take you out."

Alvarez was convicted of a second count of harassment for

threatening to put Drano in his teacher's drink. On appeal, Alvarez

argued that the harassment statute required more than one act of

harassment against a single victim before a person could be

charged under the statute. The supreme court disagreed.

The court stated that the harassment statute "is designed to

prevent the type of conduct exhibited by Appellant Alvarez'"

Alvarez, 128 Wn.2d a|12. "Any person," the cOUrt Said "may be

convicted of harassment if all the elements of the offense are

6'128 wn.2d 1, 904 P.2d754 (1995).
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satisfied. Those elements stated in RCW 9A.46.020 do not include

'repeated invasion of privacy' nor a'pattern of harassment''

Appellant Alvarez' behavior satisfied all elements of the offense of

harassment." 14 This fits squarely within the analysis of the

Supreme Court in Snow and Morqan, ggpra, and shows that

harassment is an offense that "can be committed uno actu, or in a

single act." While a perpetrator can certainly continue to commit

acts of harassment, just as any perpetrator can continue

committing additional acts of criminal behavior under any criminal

Statute, harassment is nOt "necessarily, and because of its natUre"

a continuing offense.

Now the defendant argues Alvarez answered a different

question than he posits. He asserts that while Alvarez held that a

single act of harassment may be charged as harassment, the Court

did not hold that multiple acts could be charged separately.

However, the defendant's argument fails to articulate how a crime

that the Supreme Court has held can be committed and charged

uno actu,from a single act, is by its nature a "continuing offense"

where only a single count can be charged regardless of the number

of acts committed. lt would be like saying that a perpetrator who

assaults a victim on Monday can be charged with assault, but if the
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perpetrator then assaults the victim again on Tuesday, that assault

is subsumed in the act committed the day before and only one

count of assault can be charged. This is an absurd result the

legislature could not have intended.

ln examining the harassment statute, it is also useful to

examine a similar statute and how the courts and the legislature

treated the unit of prosecution question'

Prior to 2008, no court had addressed what the proper unit

of prosecution was under the witness tampering statute. Former

RCW 9A.72.120(1) Provided that:

Apersonisguiltyoftamperingwithawitnes.sifheor
she attempti to induce a witness or person he or she

has reason to believe is about to be called as a

witness in any official proceeding or a person whom

he or she has reason to believe may have information

relevanttoacriminalinvestigationortheabuseor
neglect of a minor child to:

(a) Testify falsely or, without right or privilege to do

so, to withhold anY testimony; or

(b) Absent himself or herself from such
proceedings; or

(c) Withhold from a law enforcement agency

information which he or she has relevant to a

criminal investigation or the abuse or neglect of a

minor child to the agencY'
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ln State v. Hall,7 this Court was tasked with answering the

unit of prosecution question. Hall had been convicted of three

counts of witness tampering. Before this Court, Hall made similar

arguments to the arguments made here. He maintained that the

unit of prosecution for witness tampering was "a course of conduct

directed towards a witness or a person in relation to a specific

proceeding." &l!, 147 Wn. App. at 489. Hall argued "that it does

not matter how many attempts a defendant makes to tamper with a

single witness as long as the intent to obstruct justice in the specific

proceeding remains the same." !d.

This Court rejected Hall's interpretation of the statute finding

it unreasonable and inconsistent with the legislative intent.

Hall's reading of the statute is incorrect' The statute
prohibits any attempt to induce a witness or potential

witness to do any of the actions enumerated' The

focus is upon the attempt to induce, not on the

specific identity of the person or proceeding. There is

ambiguitY here'

Moreover, Hall's interpretation is not reasonable'
Under his reasoning, a defendant would have no

incentive to stop after the first attempt, as he would

exposehimselftocriminalliabilityforonlyonecount
of witness tampering no matter how many efforts he

made to induce the witness to disappear or testify

' 147 Wn. App. 485, 196 P.3d 151 (2008).

1605-'1 1 France COA

-25 -



falsely. This interpretation does not serve the
legislative purpose.

Hall, 147 Wn. App. at 489 (footnote omitted).

This Court also rejected Hall's argument that the statutory

language was ambiguous, and therefore it should be construed in

his favor under the rule of lenity. lnstead, this Court found that the

language of the statute was clear; that "the unit of prosecution for

tampering with a witness is any one instance of attempting to

induce a witness or a person to do any of the actions set forth in

RCW 9A.72.120.', ld.

when an appellate court issues a judicial construction of a

legislative act, it is presumed that the legislature is familiar with the

court's opinion. The failure of the legislature to amend the statute

after it has been judicially construed indicates intent to concur in

that construction. state v. Berlin, 133 Wn.2d 541 , 558, 947 P.2d

7OO (1997); State v. Fenter, 89 Wn.2d 57,70,569 P.2d 67 (1977).

After this Court's judicial construction of the witness tampering

statute, the legislature did not amend the statute, a clear indication

that the legislature agreed with this Court's conclusion. This would

become even clearer in the years that followed'
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The Supreme Court accepted review of Hall's case and

reversed this Court's decision. Specifically, the Court held that the

unit of prosecution for witness tampering was "the ongoing attempt

to persuade a witness not to testify in a proceeding," rather than

any single attempt to do so. state v. Hall, 168 Wn.2d726,734,230

P.3d 1 048 (2010). After the supreme court issued its opinion, the

legislative response was swift and straightforward'

ln direct response to the Hall decision, the legislature

amended the witness tampering statute' ln doing so, the legislature

stated the following: "ln response to State v' Hall, 168 Wn.2d726

(2010), the legislalure intends fo ctarify that each instance of an

attempt to intimidate or tamper with a witness constitutes a

separate violation for purposes of determining the unit of

prosecution under the statutes governing tampering with a witness

and intimidating a witness." 2011 Wash. Legis. serv. ch. 165

(H B. 1182) (emphasis added). The legislature added the following

provision to the statute: "For purposes of this section, each

instance of an attempt to tamper with a witness constitutes a

separate offense." Laws of 2011, ch. 165, S 3. Whatthis history

clearly shows is that the legislature always intended to make each

attempt to intimidate a witness a punishable act'

1605-11 France COA

-27 -



Statutes must be read together with other provisions in order

to determine the legislative intent underlying the entire statutory

scheme. State v. Chapman , 140 Wn.2d 436, 448, 998 P.2d 282

(2OOO). The purpose of interpreting statutory provisions together

with related provisions is to achieve a harmonious and unified

statutory scheme that maintains the integrity of the respective

statutes. ld.

Bearing in mind that there is no clear divergence in the

language of the pre-Hall harassment statute and the witness

tampering statute, and that the statutes serve the similar goal of

stopping threatening behavior, it would be absurd to interpret the

two statutes in a markedly different way. More to the point, it would

be nonsensical to believe that the legislature intended each act of a

perpetrator threatening a potential witness to be separately

punished, but when a perpetrator makes identical threats (or worse)

to a victim who is not a potentialwitness, the later perpetrator can

only be charged with a single offense while the former can be

charged with multiple offenses. This would create an inequity of
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punishment for similar criminal behavior that cannot be explained

with rational thought and cannot be what the Legislature intended.s

Another statute that is particularly relevant in discerning the

unit of prosecution of the harassment statute is the stalking statute

- a crime in the Same RCW chapter aS harassment. !n pertinent

part, the statute reads as follows:

(1) A person commits the crime of stalking if' ' ':

(a) He or she intentionally and repeatedly
harasses or repeatedly follows another person;

and

(b) The person being harassed or followed is

placedinfearthatthestalkerintendstoinjurethe
person, another person, or property of the person

or of another person. The feeling of fear must be

onethatareasonablepersonintheSamesituation
wouldexperienceunderallthecircumstances;and

(c) The stalker either:

(i) lntends to frighten, intimidate, or harass the

person; or

(ii) Knows or reasonably should.know that the

person is afraid, intimidated, or harassed even

if the stalker did not intend to place the person

in fear or intimidate or harass the person'

RCW 9A.46.110(1) (emphasis added). "Repeatedly" means on two

or more separate occasions. RCW 9A'46'110(6)(e)'

8 Additionally, chargeable acts of witness tampering cease upon occurrence of

the proieeding tnalL the subject to the tampbring. Harassment has no end

point. A perpetratorcould continue his unlavvful aits of harassment indefinitely'

-29 -
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Two aspects of this stalking statute are particularly relevant.

First, had the legislature intended harassment to be a

continuing offense, it certainly knew what language to use to

convey such an intent. ln the stalking statute, the legislature clearly

articulated the intent that a course of conduct be the punishable

unit of prosecution by using the phrase "repeatedly harasses'"

Where the legislature uses certain language in one instance, and

different language in another, this evidences a different legislative

intent. see city of Kent v. Beiqh, 145 Wn.2d 33, 46, 32 P'3d 258

(2001).e

Second,thedefendant'sclaimthatharassmentisa

continuing offense essentially makes the statute a nullity' Stalking

already includes persons who "repeatedly harass" another person'

But the "harassment statute is part of a multifaceted remedial

scheme the Legislature established to protect citizens from harmful

harassing behavior." state v. smith, 1 1 1 Wn.2d 1, 759 P.2d 372

(1988). ,,washington law" "provides a full spectrum of legal

remedies, both civil and criminal, legal and equitable designed to

s There are a variety of other terms and phrases the legislaturg 3fso could have

used but chose not todo so. See. e.q., itCW 9A.32.055 Homicide by Abu99..

t*lng in" phrase "engages in a pattern or practice of assault against a child");

iiCWg.+o.oz6g profe"ss]onaioamoting lusing the phrase."engages in" gambling.

".IiritVX 
nCW zO.sO riOisl vioLtion o-f L Nobontact Order (using the phrase "at

least two previous convictions").

-30-
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provide meaningful relief in the myriad situations where harassment

occurs." ld. (internal citations and quotations omitted)' The

harassment statute is one part of this legislative scheme and the

statute governs situations the stalking statute does not. lt makes

criminal individual acts of harassment. Alvarez, 128 Wn.2d at

11-12.

ln addition, statutes that relate to the same subject matter

are to be read in connection with each other. state v' Houck, 32

wn.2d 681,684, 203P.2d693 (1949). The civil harassment

statute defines "unlawful harassment" aS "a knowing and willful

course of conduct directed at a specific person which seriously

alarms, annoys, harasses, or is detrimental to such person..."

RCW 10.14.020(2) (emphasis added). "course of conduct" is

defined aS "a pattern of conduct composed of a series of acts over

a period of time, however short, evidencing a continuity of

purpose." RCW 10.14.020(1). "[w]hen the Legislature uses certain

language in one instance, and different language in another, there

is a difference in legislative intent." state v. E.J.H., 65 Wn. App.

771'775,830P.2d375(1992).Thus,theomissionofany

reference tO "Course of cOnduct" in the criminal harassment Statute

shows that the legislature intended to focus on singular acts of
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harassment in the criminal context and a course of conduct in the

civil context.lo See State v. Alvarez, 74 Wn. App. 250, 259-60,872

P.2d 1123 (1994), aff'd, 128 Wn'2d 1 (1995).

The defendant relies heavily on a case from Division Three,

State v. Morales,'1 a case that opined upon the unit of prosecution

question. However, the analysis in Morales is heavily flawed, and

in any event, its holding is limited to situations not applicable to the

defendant's case.

Jesus Morales and Yanett Farias have three children

together but lived apart. on one particular day, Morales became

angry because he believed Farias had stolen $4,000 from him. He

to ln a similar mode, this Court has rejected the notion that violation of a

no-contact order is , .onti*ing offenie' See Statg .v='=qr.qwq 
159 Wn' App' 1'

248P.3d518 (2olo), ;;;.;;;i;d, fi1w12d tots (zot1) Brown was convicted

of five counts of viotatrn!-ln-o-contact order on consecutive days. He argued

that his acts amount"J 6 
" 

single "unit of prosecution." This Court held that it

*ri .f".r the legislature intendid to make each violation of a court order a

chargeable offense. !9L- - '--lrrl-ny times v'ioiations of a no-contact order are consensual in nature and

result in no physical oir"nt"l harm. See State Y.. Deiarlais, 136 Wn'2d 939'

g;1, b69 F.iO'g0,92-93 (1998) (victirn continued having a consensual

Li"iioninip *ith ihe olieirojnt'oLspite having obtained a no-contact order).

Here again the absurdlty of the defendant's interpretation-of the harassment

statute'ls evident. Und6r the defendant's interpretation of the harassment

statute, where a perpetiator is actually threatening his v'rctim with harm and the

,i"ti, i. placed in reaionaUle fear the threat will be carried out (a requirement

unJer tni statute), accoraing to the defendant the legislature intended only a

iinlfe punisnment r"g"rdld9 of the num.ber of threats made. On the other hand,

iniJ[ourt has alread! n"ro tn"t the legislature intended to allow a perpetrator to

6" 
"nrrg"O 

witn muttipte counts, one ior each act that violates a no-contact

order, e-ven where no harm or threat of harm has occurred'

" 174Wn. App. 370, 298 P.3d 791 (2013).
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first went to her house but she refused to open the door. Morales

then went to the home of Farias's sister and the sister's husband,

Trinidad Diaz. "Trembling" in anger Morales told Diaz that he was

going to kill Farias the next morning when she dropped the kids off

at daycare. Farias was warned of the threat and she called the

police.

The next morning, Farias took the kids to daycare as usual

but with a plan to avoid Morales if she saw him' However, Morales

was waiting for her and blocked her vehicle with his truck. He then

yelled at her, "[T]his is as far as you've gone, you fucking bitch,

because l'm going to kill you here." Morales, 174 Wn' App' at

374-75. Morales was ConviCted of two counts of harassment with

Farias as the victim on each count and the threats having occurred

on consecutive daYs.

The court of Appeals was asked to determine if Morales's

acts constituted a single unit of prosecution or two units of

prosecution. Ultimately, the court came to the following conclusion

as to what constitutes the unit of prosecution under the harassment

statute. The Court held that where "(1) a perpetrator threatens to

cause bodily harm to a single identified person at a particular time

andplaceand(2)placesasinglevictimoftheharassmentin
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reasonable fear that the threat will be carried out, the conduct

constitutes a single offense." Morales, 174 Wn. App. at 387' Even

assuming this is the unit of prosecution under the statute, it does

not help the defendant here. The defendant did not threaten just a

single type of harm, a single particular time or a single particular

location. Rather, the defendant threatened variously to sexually

assault, physically assault, and even shooting his three victims' He

threatened to get them at the "right place" and the "right time," or in

,,nine months," or "when I get out of here." He threatened to harm

them on the sidewalk on a main street, or when they "come out of

[your] building," or in an elevator, or to find out "where you live."

ln addition to the facts of this case not fitting within the scope

of the unit of prosecution found in Morales, the analysis in the

Morales case is flawed'

ln reaching their conclusion, the Morales court stated that

the operative phrase contained in the statute, "knowingly

threatens,,, is "not inherently a single act." ld. at 387. What the

court failed to recognize is that the word "threatens" is a verb' not a

noun. Merriam-webster's colleqiate Dictionarv, 1302 (11th ed'

2OO3). The noun, "threat," to which the verb applies is found at

RCW 9A.04.110(28) and it is singular. ld. The plural of "threat" is
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-34-



"threats." ld. "Threatens" is not some sort of plural verb of the

noun "threats." Grammatically, a person "knowingly threatens" a

threat. To indicate that multiple threats need occur, another

phraSe, SUCh as "repeatedly threatens" or "repeatedly harasses," or

some other phrase would have to be used'

The Morates court also relied on the language of RCW

9A.46.030; what the court termed the "venue provision of the

harassment statute." The court noted that the provision referred to

multiple threats. The court's citation to the statute is as follows:

Any harassment offense committed as set forth in

RCW 9A.46.020 ...may be deemed to have been

committed where the conduct occurred or at the place

from which the threat or threats were made or at the

place where the threats were received'

Morales, 174 Wn. App. at 386 (emphasis added)'

There are two problems with the court drawing any unit of

prosecution conclusion from this provision.

First, left out of the RCW citation in the court's opinion is the

fact that the venue provision does not just dictate venue for

harassment, it also dictates venue for stalkingi an offense that
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requires multiple acts.12 Thus, to draw a conclusion about the unit

of prosecution from the venue provision is misguided.

second, the venue provision does define the elements of

any crime. Acts of harassment, as well as stalking, can occur in

many different locations and can occur via conduits from different

locations, i.e., by phone, computer, mail, etc., where the victim and

defendant may be in different venues. The statute does nothing

more than identify which venue may be appropriate'

The preamble of the harassmenustalking statute states that:

ThelegislaturefindsthatthepreventionofSerious,
personll harassment is an important government

objective.Towardthatend,thischapterisaimedat
*ixing unlavufulthe repeated invasions of a person's

privac! by acts and threats which show a pattern of

harassment designed to coerce, intimidate, or

humiliate the victim.

RCW 9A.46.010. The best way to achieve the intended purpose of

the chapter is to punish and stop harassment when it begins. ln

contrast, the broader the unit of prosecution, the less deterrent

affect the statute has. Allowing a perpetrator to continue harassing

a victim after his initial threat, with no additional sanction under the

statute, leaves the target of the harassment at greater risk of

,. With the omitted language, the statute reads that "[a]ny harassment offense

.orritt"O as set forthln {CW gn.+O .O2O or 9A.46.110... may be deemed to

nrre Ue"n committed...; nbW 9A.46.030 (emphasis added). RCW 9A.46'110

defines the crime of stalking.
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emotional distress and harm.13 ln fact, with the knowledge that he

is not subject to further criminal charges, a defendant may well be

emboldened to continue with his harassing behaviors'1a

Finally, the defendant's hopeful reliance upon the rule of

lenity is misplaced. Courts interpret statutes to effectuate the

legislative intent and to avoid unlikely, strange or absurd results.

State v. Contreras,124trun.2d741,747,880 P.2d 1000 (1994)' A

statute is not ambiguous, and thus the rule of lenity is not

employed, when the alternative reading is strained. state v. c.G.,

114 Wn. App. 101, 55 P.3d 1204 (2002), overruled on other

qrounds, 150 wn.2d 604, 80 P.3d 594 (2003); state v. Tili, 139

wn.2d 107,115, 985 P.2d 365 (1999). Here, as stated above, the

defendant's interpretation is not only strained, it would lead to

'3 The defendant asserts that this dire result can be ameliorated because if a

defendant were to change his mode or manner of threatening behavior,

aOOltionaf charges of haiassment could be filed. This is incorrect' There is

nothing in the sltatutory language that shows that the legislature intended the unit

oi proiecution under tlre stitute be dependent upon the mode or manner of the

defendant's threats.
1a The defendant's argument would apply equally to other statutes using the

same language. A to6t< at these statutes further highlights the absurdity of the

defense irgu;ent. For example, the threats to bomb statute uses the term

"threaten,"Lnd thus, a perpetiator could call in a bomb threat to a school day

after day after day and face but a single count. see Rcw 9.61.160. A

perpetritor commits the offense of criminal gang intimidation if the perpetrator
ithreatens" another person because they refuse to join a gang. See RCW

9A.46.120. Under the defendant's argument, the gang member can threaten his

,icti, Ory after day after day with no iurther repercussions beyond a single

count.
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absurd results, undercut the legislature's intent, and create a giant

loophole in the statute.

Harassment is a choate crime complete when a single act of

harassment occurs. The elements section of the statute is

unambiguous in describing what is necessary for conviction: a

single act. A unit of prosecution encompassing each act of

harassment is supported by the plain reading of the statute and

best effectuates the legislative intent of protecting victim and

holding defendants accountable for their discrete criminal acts'15

's This is not to say that other factors do not dictate filing decisions. Filing

decisions are reguiated by law and standards of prosecution. -Sqe RCW
gSan.af 1 ; Stati v. Lewis, 1 1 5 Wn.2d 294, 307, 797 P.2d 1 1 41 (1 990) (The filing

decision waywitnin tne prosecutor's filing standards, standards promulgated to

i".ui" the integrity of the SRA's sentencing framework. 
-The.charging 

decision

aOequatefy refllcti the defendant's actions and ensures that his punishment is

.or.ensrtate with the punishment imposed on others committing similar.

offenses and ensures that the punishment for a criminal offense is proportionate

to the seriousness of the offense").
Additionally, when there are several acts that occur close in time, the

factual doctrine of icontinuing course of conduct" may be applied and a single

rornt tit.O by the State. For example, where two distinct assaults occur in one

p1""", or"r. i short period of time, and involve the same victim, this may be

fonsidered one continuing act supporting a single charge. See State Y.. Handran,

iiC wn.zo 11, i7-18,775 p.zd 4s3 (1969); atso State v. Markp, 107 Wn. App.

Zli, ZSI-gZ, it p.gA' ZZ8 (2001) lmdttipte threats over a 9g-minute period of time

ned to be a continuing course of conduct and one criminal act).
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F. CONCLUSION

For the reasons cited above, this Court should dismiss the

defendant's petition.

DATED tnis /9 day of May, 2016.

Respectfully submitted,

DANIEL T. SATTERBERG
King County Prosecuting AttorneY

Attorneys for ResPondent
Office WSBA #91002
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Vs.

W]LLIAMNEAL FRANCE

rar.locotmWRHNGroN

Nov 10 201.l
No\/ 1 42011',

SUPE*OR COURT CLEPtr6,J{II':iJiITMENT 
ISSUED--

P R ES E NTEN CI N G STATEM ENT & I N FO RMATI ON AITAffiEI'

SUPERIOR COURT OT WASHINGTON FORKING COUNTY t

STATE OF WASHiNGTON, )
)

Plaintif(, i .uo. 1l-1-017i5-6 sEA
)
) JUDGMENTANDSENTENCE
) TELONY (FJS)

)
)

Defendant )

I.1 The defendant, the defendanf s lawyer, 
"OOII3:P,S:sentencrng

\J'. nC
ing hearing conducted todaY'

U. FINDINGS

There being no reason why judg;rnent shoulcl not be pronounced, the court finds:

2.1 6IIRREM orFENltisi' nt" defendantwaifound guilty ont1llg21rl bvplea of:

CountNo.: I[I Crime: FELONYHABASSMENT = r ,.,'. " -
Crime Code: 005P0RCW 9A.46.02011). e)

Date of Crime: l'2D8D010 Incident No. --

CountNo.:IV - .Crime: FELINYHARASSMENT. -- - '- -
Rcw 

-9A.46o20(.1.X2) crime code: 00s00

Date of Crime: 09D312009 lncidentNo.

CountNo.: VI. Crime: FELONY.HARASSME)'IT-: - -----
RCW 94.46.020(l). (2) - Crime Code: 00500

Date of Crimet 0lDSD0ll IncidentNo.

CountNo.:VII 
-Ciime;FELO.NV'IIAMSSMENT. 

'-: ----- . -
RCw 9A460200)J2) Crime Code: 00500 

- ' -

O.t. o lncident No'

tX] Additiooal current offenses are attached in Appendix A
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IV. ORDER

IT IS ORDERED that the defendant sele the determinate sentence and abide by the other terms set forth below.

4.1 RESTITUTION AND VICTIM ASSESSMENT:

t ] Defendant shall pay restitution to the Clerk of this Court as set forth in attached Appendix E.

i i OefenOant strall iot pay rcstitution because the Cou* finds that extraordinary circumstances exist, and the

court, pursuant to nb* g.gaa.z53(5), sets forth those circumstances in attached Appendix E.

I J Restiiuiion to be determined at firture restitution hearing on @ate) at 

- 

-m'[ ]Date to be sel
[ 1 oefenaant waives Presence at fiIture restitution hearing(s)'

[ ] Restitution is not ordered. ., - ---._^ -r G!

.b.'f*arritfratl pay Victim Penalty Assessment pursuant to RCW 7.68.035 in the amount of $500.

4.2 OTITER FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS: Having considefed tbe defendant's present and l.ifg.lv tuture

financial resources, the Court concludes that the difendaut has the present or likely future abitity to pay the

financial obligationsl;;"*d, Th. aourt waives finarcial obligation(s) that are che-cked below because ttre

defendant lacks the ffini anaruture ability to pay ttrem. DefJndant shall pay the following to the clerk oftltis

Courf - -.r
(a) L I $-, Court costs (RCW g'g+l'030, RCW 10'01'160); [r'l€ourt costs are waived;

(b) s100 DNA collection fee (Rcw 43.43.7541)(mandatory for crinres committed afrer7lll02\;

(c) [ ] $----, Recoupmeg! for attorney's feesto King County Public Defense Programs

GCWma-,q" 03 o) ; [u]z(eco upm ent is waiv ed ;

(d)tl$-,Fine;[]q!ggg,FineforVUCSA[]S2'Oo0'FineforsubsequentwcsA
BCW eg50.a3O); t I VUCSAfinewaived;

(e) t I $-.--, King County Interlocal Drug Fund (RCW 9'94A'030);- - 
t-TDrug Fund PaYment is waivedl

(0[]$--,$l00StateCrimeI,aboratoryFee(Rcw43'43.690);[]Laboratoryfeewaived;

(g) t ] , Incarceration costs (Rcw 9.94A,7602)); [ ] Incarceration costs waived;

(h) t I $--.---, Other costs fPr:

4.3 rAYMEI.IT ScHEDULE: Defendant's ToTAL Ftr'IANCIAL OBLICATION is:. $ 
={:o9 : ' .y"

pa,rments shall be ,;d" ;ih" Kirg Co*ty SupfoiCourt-Cle{according to the rules of the Clerk and the

following terms: [ ]Not less than $- fi T9.,fri . ! ,r{Oo uschedule established by the defendant's

Communiry Corrections officer or Departneit of ludiciat aaministration @JA) Collections officer' Financial

obligations *aU Uear inter.rrprrou.ott'to nCW to.az.o90- The Defendant shall remain under the Court's

jurisdiction to arsui. j"y'm-t of lin.o"ial obligations: _for 
crimes committed before 7nn000, for up to

ten years from the oatl of sentence or releas" flo, total conlinement, whichever is later; for crimes

committed on or after TAn111,until the oblig;tion is cornptetely satiified. Pursuaut to RCW 9'94A'7602'

if the defendant is more than 30 ilays past ar. 
-irip"V*tnS, 

a notice of payro-ll deduction may be issued without

further norice to the offender. pursuantto Rcw Sljqe.zeota$), the deiendaot shott report as directedby DJA

and proviae financial information as requested'

[ ] Court Clerk'strust fees are waived

i 1 tncrest is waived except with resPect to restitution'
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4.4 CoNFINEMENT OVER OirtB YEAk Defendant is sentenced! a term of toal confinement in the custody

of the Department of Corrections as follows, commencing: [r,ifrmmediately; I J@ate): --.--r-
by-.m.
to monttrsiders on ,ornlfl ; 6(, months/Ce#s on count{ ; t b mon*urtay on count-!-

lo-montlVdeys on countJ; .60 months/da1s on cou,nt Jj 6D mon1rs-/dey

ffiailXi:. tt bo ,^-&.r'"^c,'$-\'1 bo 11\"'$04;

Tie above terms ior counts 

- 

are consecutive / concurrent'

on.ount-f-
Oa ao...jv I tr

The above terms shall run [ ] CONSECUTIVE to cause No.(s)
(v- .S

r Qgr,trtr€\ .l5l e$a + q\re1-A\'(r(r A\\C.f(3 -t.-Krn $\.afr r-- f-g,\(-r8ilba <. EIFAr ! r-t- - t'r'l l- - 
- - -.

rr,"iu"r.ilrir', ,'t.rir* [ ] coNSEcurIvE t I coNcURRENT to any previously imposed sentence notI-heaboveleEnssnallfUnl Jt-L'ND'Eivl'IIvDL Jvvr\vv^ -'---'---- . \.--.
J;;Ji"i"tujr*o:1.,L-\ r,,^ G,rc^,.*,;; \ c,erL o\&A * c^qs^1-J-.,t \ N\ oJ+r/r't'Z,+i--\1.{'t.tf sL\ c'^ (-4u,'1
[ ] rn aaaitlon to the above term(s) tle court_imposes the following mandatory terms of confurement for any

special WEAPON furding(s) in section 2,1:

which term(s) shall run consqcutive with each other and with all base term(s) above and terms in any other

cause. (use ttris section ouly foi crimes committed after 6-10-98)

I J The enhancemenr term(s) for any special WEAfCjX fuAings in sectio.n 2.1 ivare i$gh4e1d within the

temr(s) imposed abov.: 1g;; dG slction when appropriate, but for crimes before 6-1 1:98 only, per.In Re

Chagles)

TheToTALofalltermsimposedinthiscausei' I I O montt"'

credit is grYel !91qme served in Kine countv 
'$ T,tlBPJl'J::trffi'fr1t "1ffitf,:il'r'"I',:t"

pursuant t6 nCw 9.94A.505(6): I J ,= , d1]'(t

[ ] For nonviotent, oor* ifi,n"re, .6Eit-f give,i fo.aly*:i.r*rqldP the King County Jail to have been

served in theKing c"r"ty irp"*i;;J?;il;rty optioo fr"hanced cqAP) solely under this cause number'

[ ] For nonviolent, nonsex off.orr, the court uuifroirtt earned early release credit consistent with the local

conectional facility standards for days spent in the King county Supervised community option'(Enhanced

ccAP)..

4.5 NO CONTACT: For the mQximum term oL|$1uars, defendant shall have no contact with-
C-:, ^s-a'A.rL A*?^tirr \il

DNA TESTING. The defendant shall have a biological sample collected for Bgp-9t:'-9I?NA identification

;;Gil;atii" A"f..A*irfr"if n ffy.oop"*1. in t[e testing,-as ordered in APPENDIX G'

t I Hrv TESTTNG; r;;;;;;d"., p-tottitotioo offense] dnrg offense associated with the use of

il#"i"-i" 
"".ar"s, 

tne A"ienaant shali submit to HIv testing as ordered in APPENDIX G'

(a) t I coMIvItINITY CUSTODY forqualifying.cri-mes committed before 7'1-2000' is orderedfor

[ ] orre year (for a dmg offense, assault 2, assarilt of a child 2, or any crime against a person where there is a

findingthatdefendantoiuo.r.o*plicewasarmedwithadeadlyweipon); [ ]l8months(foranyvehicular

homicide or for a vehicular asault by oeing under the influence or bybperation of a v&icle in a reckless

manne{; [ ] rwo years (for a serious violent offense)'

(b) t ] CoMMUMTY CUSTODY for any sEx oFFENSE committed after 6'5'96 but before 7'1-2000'
' ' -isbrdered 

for aperiod of 36 months'

4.6

4.7
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SPECIAL VERDICT or FINDING(S):

(e)
(h)
(D

6)

(a) t lWhilearmedwithafirearmincount(s) RCW9'94A.533(3).

i6) i j While armed with a dearlly weapon other than a firearm in count(s) 

---._- 
RCW 9.944.533(4).

Ci i j With a sexual motivation in couut(s) RCW 9.94A.835.'
(di t I A V.U.C.S.A offense committed in a protected zone in coun(s)-RCW 69.50.435.

Gi i f Vehicularhomicide[ ]Violenttrafficoffense t lDlll [ ]Reckless [ ]Disregard.

ifi i j Veticutar homicide byDUI with . prior conviction(s) for offense(s) defined in RCW46.61.5055,

RCV/ 9.94A.s33(7).

[ ] Non-parental kidnapping or unlararfrrl imprisonment with a minor victim, RCW 9A.44.128, ,130.'

i I pomistic violence as iefined in RCW 10.t9.020 was pled and proved for count(s)-'
ijcunuotoffensesencompassingthesamecriminaIconductinthiscausearecount(s)-RCW
e.94A.589(1Xa).

ffi aggravating circumstances as to coun{s) in.IV. VI. VII. VIIL IX. XIL XIV. XV: OFFICER OF TIIE
COI'RT.AGGMVATOR ,. . -

2.2 OTHER CURRENT CONYICTION(S): Other cunent convictions listerl under different cause numbers used

in calculating the offender score are (tist offense and cause number):

2.3 CRIMINAL HISTORY: Prior convictions constituting criminal history for purposes of calculating the

offender score are (RCW 9.94A.525):

[X] Criminal history is attached in Appendixl
i i Oor p"int added for offense(s) comrnitted while under community placeflrent for count(s)

[ ] Additional current offense sentencing data is attachea in Appendix C'

2.5 EXCEPTIONAL SENTENCE

i t Finai"gs ofFact and Conclusions oflaw as to sentence alovp tfe standard range:

[ffii"g,Hlt":+:f 1'a*IP"*q.3.,,t*:{'i-?'a'i*:{{yIJt,**
Conctusi6il'iFI7il firese algravating circumstances constitute substantial and compellrng reasons.mat (Ds e
justiff a senten.irbor. the Jdndara range for Count(s) 5e{- <tto''* [ r'{T ne court woutd impose the

same sentence on the basis.of any'one of the ag$avating Circum,stances.

t$^exceptional senteflce above the standard rarggis impoqe! pursuantto RCW 9.94A.535(2) (including free

crimes or the stipulation oifi. defendan|. rinainls irract and Conclusions oflaw are attached in Appendix D'

[ ] en exceptional sentence below t]re standard range is imposed. Findings of Fact and Conclusions oflaw are

attached in APPendix D'

The State t I did [ '] did not recommend a similar sentence (RCW 9.94A.480(4)).

III. JUDGMEN.T

IT IS ADruDGED that defendant is guilty of the current offeuses set forth in Section 2.1 above and Appendix A'

IXI The CouTtDISMISSES Count(s) I. II. V' X' XI' XIII & XVI
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(c) t I COMMIJNITI CUSTODY - for qualifying crimes committed after 6-30-2000 is ordered for the

following established range or term:

t I iex Offense, RCV 9.94lr.030 - 36 months-when not sentenced under RCW 9.944.507

I Seriow Violent Ofrense, RCW 9.94A.030 - 36 months- 
t I If crime committed prior to 8-1-09, a range of 24 to 35 months'"

J Violent Offense, RCW 9.94A.030 - l8 months
j C.iru Against Person, RCV/ 9,94{.411or Felony Violation of RCW 69.50152 - 12 months- 

I I If crime committEd prior to 8'1-09, a range of 9 to 12 months'

Sanctions and punishments for non-compliance will be imposed by theDeparnnent of Corrections or the court.

[XIAPPENDIk E for'Community Custody conditions is attached and incorporated herein.

i iAppgNDIX J for sex offender registration is attached and incorporated herein.

4.g I I WORKETIIIC CAMP: Ihe courr finds thatthe defendant is eligible forwork ethic camp, is likely to

oualifu under RCW 9.94L,690 and recommends that the defendant serve the seftence at a work ethic camp.

6;:r;;;n irorff.tion of ttris program, tbe defendant shall be released to community custody for any

re'maining time of total confinement, subject to the conditions set out in Appenilix H.

4.9 t I ARMED CRIME COI4PLIANCE'RCW9.94A.475,.480. The State',s plea/sentencing agreementis

I Jattacbed ['ias follows:

The defendant shall report to an assigned Community Corrections Officer upon release from confinement for

monitoring of the remaining terms of this sentence'

D"t., ['lO -l\

Deputy Prosecuting Attorney, WSBA#
PrintName:

Presented by:

A:Forney for Defendant, WSBA

Rev.08/09



SIJPERIOR COURT OT'WASHINGTON FOR KING COUNTY

STATE OF WASHINGTON,

Ptaintiff,

vs.

WILLI,AMNEAL FRANCE

Defendant"

)
)
) No. 11-1-0171s-6 SEA

)
) ruDGMENTANDSENTENCE
) (FELOI.TO - APPENDD( A
) eppIUoNALcURRENToFFENSES
)
)

2.1 The defendant,is also convicted ofthese additional current offenses:

\.
Count].lo.: VIII Crime: FELONYHAMSSI@NT ' ' '
RCw 9A.46.024m) 

- 
CtimeCode 00508 -

CountNo.:-U-- Crime: FELONYHAE4SSIvIENT-r--- - ''
RCW 9A.46.02071m 

-. 
crimecode 00s00 .,-

CountNo.: Xff Crime: TELONYHA&\$SI4EL{T -' 

-

ncw sa.a63fr(pJ2 -, - $gecg$e 00500

a^tu lncidentNo"

CountNo.: XIV Crime: FELONYHAMSSNTFI'IT -' ' 
-.Rcw9A'46'05RI6-CrimcCode00500

'DateorcrimeTiffitt- IncidentNo'-

CountNo.: XV.. Crime: FELONYHA&4SSMENI --
Crime Code 00500 -RCW9A.46.020(1).@) r- !r_-.rr- 

=.Date Of Crime 0lD5/2011 IncidentNo.

,",.'- tt(t'/U 
- KINGCOTINTY

.t:rEvEr{ GO

APPENDD(A



RIGHT HAND
FINGERPRINTS OF:

WIIJTJIAI,I NEAL FRANCE

DEFB\TDAIVI I S
DEFEI{DAIIT I S

SIGNATURE:
ADDRESS:

DATED' \\^rS:\--

CLERK OF TH]S ffi THAT

THE ABOVE IS A TRUE COPY OF TI{E

JUOOE}AT\T'T AND SENTENCE IN THIS
ACTION ON RECORD IN MY OFFICE.

s.r.D. NO. !\IA10356245

DOB: MARCII 11, L954

SEX: M

RACE: W

BY:
OBPUTY CIJERK

DATED:



STJPERIOR COURT OF WASIIINGTON FOR.KING COUNTY

STATE OF WASHINGTON,

Plaintiff,

.vs.

WILLIAMNEAL FMNCE

Defendant,

2,2 Thedefendant has the following criminal history used in calculating the offender score @cw
9.944.525)z

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

No. 11-1-01715-6 SEA

JUDGMENT AND SENTENCE,
(FELOI\IQ - APPENDIX B,
CRIMINALHISTORY

Crime
ROBBERY-2
FELONY HARASSI\4ENT
FELONY TELEPHONE.HARASSMENT-DV
PROTECTION ORDER VIOL-PREV CO

MALICIOUS MISCHIEF.2
TAK]NC \TEIIICLE w/O PERMISSION
POSSBSS STOLEN PRO?ERTY-2

Adult or Cause
Juv. Crime Number Location
ADULT 70233 KING CO

ADULT 021063906 KINGCO
ADULT 051049851 KING CO

ADULT 091051859 KING CO

ADI,ILT O5IO87443KINGCO
ADULT 99t009376 LEWIS CO

ADI,LT 991009376'LEWISCO

Sentencing
Date
03D811978
02n1D003
06n7n005
70n6r2009 

'

09D3n005
01128n000
01/282000

[ ] The following prior convictions were countetl as one offense in determining the offender score @cw

Appendix B-Rev. 09/02
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SUPERIoRCoURToFWASHINGToNFoRKINGcot]NTY

STATE OF WASHINGTON, )
)

Plainti4 ) No. 1l-1-01715-6 SEA

)
vs. )

) APPENDIXH

WILLTAMNEAL FRAI{CE, ) ___
) NOCONTACTORDER

Defendant. )
)
)

IT IS SO ORDERED by this Court tlat the defendant is exoluded from being within

1,000 feet of any of the victims (Anita Paulsen, Nina BeaclU and Lisa Daugaard) or within a

1,000 foot perimeter of the ofEce of The Defender Association (Centa1 Buildi!9, 86 floor, 810

3rdAve., Seattle), the King Cotmty Deparhent of Adnlt and Juvenile Detention (DAJD) (500

5tr Ave., Seattle), and the King County Cour0rouse (516 3rd Ave., Seattle) unless: (1) the

defendant has documented business attheDAJD orthe King Counry Conrthouse; (2) r:nless he is

under arrest; or (3) his presence has been previously cleared by his corrections officer. Ifnot

under Washington State Departnent of Correction's supervision, pniornotice ofthe defendanfs

No Contact Order' 1

Danlel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attomey
W554 King County Cou6ousc
516 Third Avcnuc
Scafilc, Washington 98104
(206) 2964000, FAX (20o295495s
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expected presence is to be grven to the DAJD and King County Cotrt secruity unless the

defendant's pr"ruo.. is purstrant to his in-oustody status.

Signed tni, -lpoay of November, 2011.

Daniel T. Satterberg, Frosecuting Attorney
W554 King CountY Courthouse

516 Third Avenuc
Seante WdshiEtonSgt04
(206) 2961000, FA)( (206)29609s5

No Coutact Ofiet -2
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THE STATE OF WASHINGTON,

v.

WILLIAM NEAL FRANCE,

@l-J

)
Plaintiff, )

) No. 11-l-01715-6 SEA

)
) AMENDED INFORMATION

)
)
)

COUNT I

Andl,DanielT.Satterberg,ProsecutingAttorneyaforesaidfurtherdoaccusewlLLlAM
NEAL FRANCE of the crime of Felony Haraisment, based on a series of acts connected

;";"thrr with another orime charged herein, committed as follows:

That the defendant WILLIAM NEAL FRANCE in King county, YrTHlon, on or

about December l, 2010, having been previously convicte{gn-September.23'2009' of the crime

oirrfo.y Violation of a Co,rt Order against a person specifically named in a no.contact or no

harassment order, ;th;"i hwful authJrity, knowingly did threaten to cause bodily injury

immediately or in the futrue to Anita pauisen, to subiict Anita paulsen to physical confinement

or restain! to maliciouslydo an act intendedto suustantiatty harm Anita paulsen with respect to

her physical or mental health or safety; and the words or conductdid place Anita Paulsen in

r"uro*bl" fear that the threat would be carried out;

Contrary to RCW 9A.46.020(1), (2), and against the peace and dignity of the State of

Washington.

Andl,DanielT.Satterberg,ProsecutingAttgleygtKinggo*ginthenameandby
the authority of the State of wasdngon furttreldo allege the crime involves the following

aggravating factor and accuse the dJfendant WILLIAMNEAL FMNCE of comrnitting said

offense and that the defendant's conduotJuring the commi_ssion of this offense manifested

deliberate cruelty to tt" victim, under the authority of RCW 9'9aA'535(3Xa)'

SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON FOR KING COUNTY

FILED
KNc cbulnY wAsHlNoroN

sEP 23 2011

SUPERIOR COUNT CIEBK

Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney
W554 King Cototy Courthouse

5 16 Third Avcnue
Seatttc, Washington 9E lfi
(206) 296-9000, FAx (206) 296{95tAMENDED TNFORMATION - I
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And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attomey f9r King coun.q !11!"^l*. and by

the authority of the state of washlngton furtheido accuse the defendant WILLIAM NEAL

FRANCE that the defendant commilned the offense against a public official or offrcer of the

court in retaliation ofit. public oflicial's performanci of his or her duty to the criminal justice

system under the authority of RCW 9'94A'535(3Xx)'

COUNT II

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney aforesaid further do accuse WTLLIAM

NEAL FRANCE of tne crime of Felony Haralsment, based on a series of acts connected

i -"g"tn* with another crime charged herein, committed as follows:

That the defendant WILLIAM NEAL FRAI'{CE in King county, wT^hi$io"' on or

about December 26,2lll,having been previously convicted on Septemb er 23'-2009' of the

crime of Felony Viotation of a Ciurt Order against a person- specifically namedin a no contact or

no harassm"nt ora"r,luitU; iu*fuI authoriry-, knowingty di.d threaten to cause bodily injury

immediately or in tL nrture to Anita pJr.n,-to subject Anita paulsen to physical confinement

or restraint, to -"ti"io*ty ao * urt intendedto zubstantially}arm Anita Paulsen with respect to

her physical o, *.tol f,t'latn or safety; *Jtfrt words or conduct did place Anita Paulsen in

r***Ut" fear that the threat would be carried out;

contrary to RCW 9A.46.020(1), (2), and against the peace and dignity of the state of

Washington.

And t, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting AttgTey for King County in the.naff'e and by

the authority of the State of Warhingon n rtt .iao allegl the crime involves the following

aggravating factor *Ju".*t *re aJfenaaniWILLlAM NEAL FRANCE of committing said

offense and that ttre defenaant's conduct ;*ing tfr" co^mTission of this offense manifested

deliberate cruetty t" th;-;i;ti;, under the auttrority of RCW 9'94A'535(3Xa)'

Andl,DanielT.Satterberg,ProsecutingAttomeyforKingCountyinthenamoandby
the aurhority of the State of Washington fuAeldo accuse the defendant WILLIAM NEAL

FRAllcE that the d;f;; *rn-iltt a ttt on *r against a pubtic official or officer of the

court in retaliation ;ilprbil otrrcial's performand of his or her duty to the criminal justice

rvJ", *aer the authority of RCW 9'94A'535(3Xx)'

COUNT III

And I, Daniel T. satterberg, Prosecuting Attomey aforesaid further do accuse WILLIAM

NEAL FRANCE oiirr" crime of renoy i"""Jsment, based on a series of acts connected

;*"g;i[r; ;tt uoo*,", crime charged herein, committed as follows:

That the defendant WILLIAM NEAL FRAllcE in King cotutty' washington' on or

about December 28, 2010, having f.to pilrio*iy convioted on September23'2A09' of the

crime of Felony viorution of a ciurt order againit a person specifically named in a no contact or

Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney
W5 54 King CowrtY Courthousc

516 Third Avcnue
Scrttte. Washhgton 98 I M
izoel z'se-gooo, FAx (206) 2954es5AMENDED INFORMATION.2
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no harassment order, without lawful authority, knowingly did threaten to cause bodily injury

i.-Ji.trfy or in the future to Anita Paulsen, to subject Anita Paulsen to physical confinement

or restraint, to malicioJy ao - act intended to subitantially harm Anita Paulsen with respect to

her physical o, *"ntut h"ulth or safety; and the words or conduct did ptace Anita Paulsen in

o"ro*bl. fear that the ttueat would be carried out;

Contary to RCW 9A.46.020(l), (2), and against the peace and dignity of the State of

Washington.

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attomey {or 
King 9o*p in thename andby

the authority of the stut, of w*hingron furttreido a[egl the crime involves the following

aggravating factor *Jur"r* the ae-fendant WILLIAM NEAL FRANCE of committing said

offense and that the defendant's conduct o*ing the cgmmission of this olfense manifested

deliberate cruelty to ,t. uittito, under the authority of Rcw 9'9aA'535(3Xa)'

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney for King coun-q j11{e. name and by

the authority of the itarc of Wastrlngton n,ttreido accuse the defendant WILLIAM NEAL

FRAI.{CE that the Oefrrau,t "orrrilt 
d U,r off.nt" against a public official or officer of the

courr in retaliation "i[" 
pruir. oflicial,s peJo*,*gl of his or her duty to the criminal justice

;t;t under the authority of RCW 9'9aA'535(3Xx)'

COI'NT IV

Andl,DarrielT.Satterberg,ProsecutingAttorneyaforesaidfirrtherdoagcusewlLLlAM
NEAL FRANCE of tne crime of ielony i"".Jrr."t, based on a series of acts connected

G;,* with anottrer crime charged herein, committed as follows:

ThatthedefendantW[LLIAMNEALFRANCEinKingCoung,!as}]lqton,onor
about January 10, 201 l, having U".n pttrio*fy convicted on Septembet 23'2009' of the crime

of Felony Violation oia CourtbraerLgainst a peryol specifically named in a no contact or no

harassment order, *iE;"i iawful autt oiity, tnowingty did tht"ate" to cause bodily injury

immediately or in ttre trt,e to Anita p.ittn, to t'6'jitt lrytu Paulsen to physical confinement

or restraint, to maliciouJiao * act intended to substantially hann Anita Paulsen with respect to

her physical o, lllrnt t fr"Ath or safety; ,,Jtf," words or oonduct did place Anita Paulsen in

ii*rtiUf" fear that the threat would be carried out;

contrary to RCW 9A.46.020(1), (2), and against the peace and dignity of the State of

Washington.

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney {or King Coun! in the name and by

the authority of tne State of Wasllngton n tttt"iao a1egl the crime involves the following

aggravating factor *Jur.u* the dJfendant WILLIAM-NEAL FRANCE of committing said

offense and that the defendant's conduct J*iog the co-11!9sion of this offense manifested

deliberate cruelty t"ifr. ri.ti*, under the authority of RCW 9'9aA'535(3)(a)'

Dsniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney
W554 King ComtY Courthousc

516 Third Avenue
Sc*tlc, Washhgton 98 I 04

ijool igeeooo, FAx (206) 2e64e55AMENDED INFORMATION - 3
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And I, Daniel T. satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney !r King coturq !1$e yme and by

the authority irtn" State of Washinglon furttrei do accuse the defendant WILLIAM NEAL

FRANCE that the defendant .or*itt d the offense against a public offrcial or officer of the

court in retaliation "ittn 
p"uric official's performanci of his or her duty to the crirninal justice

system under the authority of RCW 9'94A'535(3)(x)'

COUNT V

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney aforesaid further do accuse WILLIAM

NEAL FRANCE of the crime Of ielony Haraisment, based on a series of acts connected

tog.Gr with another crime charged herein, committed as follows:

Thatthe defendant WILLIAMNEAL FRANCE in King county, !as]!1qton, 
on or

about January t2,2lll, having beenpreviously convicted ol september 23,2009,of the crime

oif.tooy Viotation of a Court-Orderigainst a person specifically narued in a no.contact or no

harassment order, *itfr"* lawful authority, knowingly did threaten to cause bodily injury

immediately or in the fut,re to Anita puireru to suSjict enita paulsen to physical confinement

or restraint, to maticiousty do an act intendedto substantially harm Anita Paulsen with respect to

her physical o, ,n.ntA t.ulth or safety; and the words or conduct did place anita Paulsen in

,"*L*bl" fear that the threat would be carried out;

. contrary to RCW 9A.46.020(l), (2), and againstthe peace and dignity of the state of

Washington.

And I, Daniel T. satterberg, Prosecuting Attgrney for King county in the name and by

the authority of the itut of W"rhlngton n ttt.iAo alegl the orime involves the following

aggravating factor *a u.rur" the defendant Wff,f,fef'iNgAl FRANCE of committing said

offense and that tfr" aif"rO*t's conductJuring the commission of this offense manifested

deliberate cruelty,o tft. ,ittir, under tlre authority of RCW 9'9aA'535(3Xa)'

Andl,DanielT.Satterberg,ProsecutingAttomey!rKingcr*gttt..nameandby
the authoriry of the State ;f Washl;glon fi*theido accuse the defendant WILLIAM NEAL

FRANCE that the A"froa*t.o*.iurd the offense agarnst a public oflicial or offrcer of the

cotut in retariation 
"f 

rc pruii" orn ia,, prrformand of his or her duty to the criminal justice

ryrti* under the authority of RCW 9'94A'535(3Xx)'

COUNT VI

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attomey aforesaid further do accuse WILLIAM

NEAL FRANCE of the crime of Felony llaras-sment, based on a series of acts connected

i;;;,h.;;th another crime charged herein, committed as follows:

That the defendant WILLIAM NEAL FRANCE in King County' Washington' on or

about January 25,2011, having beenpreviously convicted 9} Septembe t23'2009'of the crime

;iF;i;y vi;hdon;fla court-order against a person specifically named in a no.contact or no

harassment order, *itfrori iawful authJrity, knowingly iid th"utto to cause bodily injury

Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attomey
W554 King CountY Coutthouse

516 Third Avenuc
Seutlc. Washhgton 98 I 04

(206) 296,9000, FAX (206)296{9ssAMENDED INFORMATION.4
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immediately or in the future to Anita Paulsen, to subject Anita Paulsen to physical confinement

oi rertruint, to maliciously do an act intended to substantially harrr Anita Paulsen with respect to

her physical or mental health or safety; and the words or conduct did place Anita Paulsen in

reasonable fear that the threat would be carried out;

contrary to RCW 9A.46.020(l), (2), and against the peace and dignity of the State of

Washington.

And [, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney for King County in thename and by

the authority ofthe State of Washington further do allege the crime involves the following

aggravating factor and accuse the de-fendant WILLIAM NEAL FRANCE of committing said

offense and that the defendant's conduct during the commission of this offense manifested

deliberate cruelty to the victim, under the authority of Rcw 9.94A.535(3Xa).

And I, Daniel T. satterberg, Prosecuting Attomey for King courtr !1-t!e name and by

the authority irtn" state of washington furthei do accuse the defendant WILLIAM NEAL

FRANCE that the defendant co.*itted the offense against a public official or oflicer of the

court in retaliation oittre puttic oflicial's performance of his or her duty to the criminal justice

system under the authority of RCW 9.94A'535(3Xx)'

COLINT VII

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney aforesaid furttrer do accuse WILLIAM

NEAL FRANCE of the crime of ielony HaraJsmeut, based on a series of acts connected

tog.G, with another crime charged hereir! commi6ed as follows:

That the defendant WILLIAMNEAL FRANCE in King county, was}ington' on or

about January I l, 2011, having betnpreviously convicted on september 23, 2009,of the crime

of f.lony Vi|tation of a CouriOrderigainst a person specifically named in a no contact or no

harassment order, *ithout lawful authJrity, knowingfy did threafen to cause bodily injury

immediately or in the future to Lisa Daugaard, to subject L.isa Daugaard to physical confinement

or restraint, to t"uriciouriy do an act inteiaea to substantially harrr Lisa Daugaard with respect to

her physical or mental neartrr or safety; and the words or conduct did place Lisa Daugaard in

,.*-o*bl" fear that the threat would be carried out;

ConEary to RCw 9A,46'020(l), (2), and against the peace and dignity of the State of

Washington.

And I, Daniel T. satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney for King county in the name and by

the authority of the state of washington nrttreido allege the crime involves the following

aggravating factor and accuse the de-fendant WILLIAM NEAL FRANCE of committing said

offense and that tne difendant's conduct dtring the co-mmi-ssion of this offense manifested

deliberate cruelty to the victim, under the authority of RCW 9'9aA'535(3Xa)'

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney f9r King County illt name and by

the authority of the state of washlngton furthei do accuse the defendant WILLIAM NEAL

Daniel T. Satterberg Prosecuting Attomey
W554 King CountY Counhous€

5 16 Thitd Avcnue
Scattlc, Washhgton 9t I 04

tzool 
js6-9ooo, Fe>( (206) 296{B5s

AMENDED INFORMATION. 5
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FRANCE that the defendant committed the offense againsl a public offrcial or officer of the

court in retaliation oitr,e puuric official's performanci of his or her duty to the criminal justice

system under the authority of RCW 9.94A'535(3Xx)'

COTJNT VIII

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attomey aforesaid furttrer do accuse WILLIAM

NEAL FRAIICE of the crime of Felony Hara.isment, based on a series of acts connected

G"tt rr with another crime charged herein, committed as follows:

That the defendant WILLIAMNEAL FRANCE inKing county, !as]{$ton, onot

about January Lz,zlll,having been previously convicted on september 23,2009, of the crime

oii"ronv vi;htion or a court-order against a person specifically named in a no.contact or no

harassment order, ;th;rt lawful autho-rity, knowingly did thr*t"o to cause bodily initrry

immediately or in trre trtrre to Lisa Daug"aard, to tuu.;-.rt risa Daugaard to physical confinement

or restraint, to *oricLusiv do an act inteided io subitantially harm Lisa Daugaard with respect to

her physical o, *.ota t.ath or safety; and the words or conduct did place Lisa Daugaard in

,.*t*bl. fear that the threat would be carried out;

contrary to RCW 9A.46.020(l), (2), and against the peace and dignity of the State of

Washinglon.

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney for King cotrnly in the:rame and by

the authority of the State of Warhingtroo n.tU"iAo albgl the crime involves the following

aggravating facror *Jur"*, tfre defenaariiWflf,feft4 NEAL FRAI'ICE of committing said

offense and that the defendant's conducrd,ring the co-mmission of this offense manifested

deliberate cruelty to ttre victim, under the authority of Rcw 9'9aA'535(3Xa)'

And I, Daniet T. satterberg, Prosecuting Attomey for King courty in the name and by

the authority of the State of Wastlogton nrrttreiao uccuie the defendant WILLIAM NEAL

FRANCE that the a"i."a*t "orn 
iitrd the offense against a public official or officer of the

court in retariation of,r* p.til, official's performangl of his or her duty to the criminal j,stice

ryritr" under the authority of RCW 9'94A'535(3Xx)'

COUNT IX

Andl,DanielT.satterberg,ProsecutingAttorneyaforesaidfurtherdoaccusewlLLlAM
NEAL FRANCE of the crime Of Fetony ttereJsment, based on a series of acts connected

G;ih; *itt *ott 
"r 

crime charged herein, committed as follows:

That the defendant WILLI.AM NEAL FRANCE in King county, Y:*l*t"' on or

about January 25,2071, having U"t, pttriously con icad g: Siptember 23' 2009' of the crime

;iF;i;y Violation of a Court'Order against a pefol specifically named in a no contact or no

harassment order, wiihout iaurfirl authority, knowingly did threateo to cause bodily injury

immediately or in the future to Lisa Oaug;9, to sybiect.fjsa Daugaard to physical confinement

or restraint, to .uri"io*tlao * urt inteided io subslantially harm Lisa Daugaard with respect to

Daniel T. Satterbcrg Prosecuting Aftomey
W554 King County Courthousc

516 Third Avenuc
Scattlc. Washirgron 9E I 04

tzoo jr-cooo, FAx (206)2s6'09ssAMENDED INFORMATION. 6
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her physical or mental health or safety; and the words or conduct did place Lisa Daugaard in

reasonabl. fear that the threat would be carried out;

contrary to RCW 9A.46.020(1), (2), and against the peace and dignity of the state of

Washington.

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney for King County in the-narnq and by

the authority of the State of wastrlngton furthei do atlege the crime involves the following

aggravating factor *J u""ur. the dJfendant WILLIAMNEAL FRANCE of committing said

offlense and that tfre aefenaants conduct dt[ing the commission of this offense manifested

deliberate cruelty to the victim, under the authority of RCW 9.9aA'535(3)(a)'

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney for King Connty ilgt name and by

the authority of the State of Wattiogtot frrthei do accuse the defendant WILLIAM NEAL

FRANCE that the defendant ,ot*itt d the offense against a public offrcial or offrcer of the

court in retaliation oio. p"uri. official's performancl of his or her duty to the criminal justice

system under the authority of RCW 9'94A'535(3Xx)'

COUNT X

And I, Daniel T. satterberg, Prosecuting Attomey aforesaid further do accuse WILLIAM

NEAL FRAIICE of the crime of Felony Haralsmeut, based on a series of acts connected

G;Gr with another crime charged herein, committed as follows:

That the defendant WILLLAM NEAL FRANCE in King county, !as]{1qton' on or

about January 25,2011, having been previously convioted on September-2.3,2009,of the crime

oiirronv villation or a cowt-oder against a person specifically named in a no contact or no

harassment order, *itfrout lawful autho-rity, knowingly did threaten to cause bodily injury

immediatety or in the future to Lisa Oaug'aard" to zubject.Lisa Daugaard !o physical confinement

or resfiaint, to maticiously do an act inteided io substantially harm Lisa Daugaard with respect to

her physical or mental health or safety; and the words or conduct did place Lisa Daugaard in

r""to*blt fear that the threat would be carried out;

contrary to RCW 9A.46.020(1), (2), and against the peace and dignity of the state of

Washington.

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney for King Counfl in the-name and by

the authority of the State of WasUington furtheido allegl the crime involves the following

aggravating factor *a u."use the de-fendant WILLIAM-NEAL FRAI"{CE of committing said

offense and that the defendant's conduct during the cornmission of this offense manifested

deliberate cruelty to the victim, under the authority of RCW 9'94A'535(3)(a)'

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attomey f9r King Coun-[ i1-t!e. 
name and by

the authority of tne State of W*tittgtoo n ttt"iao aecuse the defendant WILLIAM NEAL

FRANCE that the o.r.no*t commilted the offense against a public offroial or officer of the

Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney
W554 King CountY Couftho$se

516 Third Avcnuc
Seanlc. Washhgton 98 104

izoel zx-sooo, FAx (206) 2e6{95sAMENDED INFORMATION. T
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court in retaliation of the public offrcial's performance of his or her duty to the criminal justice

system under the authority of RCW 9.94A.535(3Xx)'

COUNT XI

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney aforesaid firther do accuse WILLIAM

NEAL fna:\iCB of the crime of Fetony Harassment, based on a series of acts connected

together with another crime charged hereir:r committed as follows:

That the defendant WILLIAM NEAL FRANCE in King County, Washington, on or

about January 2g,ZOl1, having beenpreviously convicted on September-23,2009, of the crime

of Felony viltation of a Courtorder against a person specifically named in a no.contact or no

harassmint order, without lawful authority, knowingly did threaten to cause bodily inju{
immediately or in the funrre to Lisa Daugaard, to subject_I,isa Daugaard !o physical confinement

or restrainf to maliciously do an act intended to substantially harm Lisa Daugaard with respect to

her physicat or mental fr"A1[ or safety; and the words or conduct did place Lisa Daugaard in

reasonable fear that the threat would be carried out;

Contrary to RCW 94.46.020(l), (2), and against the peace and dignity of the State of

Washington.

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney for King County in theaame and by

the authority of the State of Washlngtoo furttrei do allege the crime involves the following

aggraratinjfactor and accuse the dJfenaant WILLLAM NEAL FRANCE of committing said

offense and that the defendant's conduct during the commission of this offense manifested

deliberate cruelty to the viotim, underthe authority of RCW 9'9aA'535(3Xa)'

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney for King Courty in the name and by

the authority of the State of Washington firther do accuse the defendant WILLIAM NEAL

FRANCE that the air""a*t commi-tted the offense against a public offrcial or officer of the

cowt in retaliation of trn public official's performance of his or her duty to the criminal justice

system under the authority of RCW 9.94A'535(3Xx)'

COT'NT XII

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attomey aforesaid further do accuse WILLIAM

NEAL rnar.icg of the crime of ielony Harassment, based on a sEries of,acts connected

together with another crime charged herein, committed as follows:

That the defendant WILLIAM NEAL FRANCE in King County, Washington, on or

about December zl,z}l},having been previously convicted on September 23,-2009' of the

.ri*i of Felony violationof a Court oider against aperson specifically namedjn a no contact or

no harassment'order, without lawful authoritn knowingly did threaten to cause bodily injury

immediately or in thl mture to Nina Beach, io subjectNina Beach to physical conlinement or

.rrt ulrt, to maticiously do an act intended to substantially harm Nina Beach with respect to her

Daoiel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney
w554 King Cormty Coutthousc
5l6Third Avenuc
Scasle, Washhgron 98 104

(206) 296-9000, FAx (206) 29coe5s
AMENDED INFORMATION. S
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physical or mental health or safety; and the words or conduct did place Nina Beach in reasonable

fear that the threat would be canied out;

Contrary to RCW 9A.46.020(l), (2), and against the peace and dignity of the State of

Washinglon.

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney for King County in the-name and by

the authority of the State of Washington firrther do allege the crime involves the following

ulgra*ting factor and accuse the defendant WILLIAM NEAL FRAI{CE of committing said

ots"nr. anI that the defendant's conduct dtring the commission of this offense manifested

deliberate cruelty to the victim, under the authority of RCW 9.9aA.535(3)(a)'

COUNT XIII

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attomey aforesaid further do accuse WILLIAM

NEAL FRANCE of the crime of ietony Heressment, based on a series of acts connected

together with another crime charged herein, committed as follows:

That the defendant WILLIAM NEAL FRANCE in King County, Washington, on or

about December z1,z1\O,having been previously convicted on September 23,2009, of the

"ri*. 
of Felony Violation of a Court Order against a persoL specifically named-in a no contact or

no harassment order, without laurfrrl authority, knowingly did threaten to caus€ bodily itjury

immediately or in the futtue to Nina Beach, to subject Nina_ Beach to physical confinement or

restraint, to maliciously do an act intended to substantially harm Nina Beach with respect to her

pr,yrirJor mental treaittr or safety; and the words or conduct did place Nina Beach in reasonable

fear that the threat would be carried out;

Contrary to RCW 9A.46.020(l), (2), and against the peace and dignity of the State of

Washington.

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney for King County in thename and by

the authority of the State of Washington further do allege the crime involves the following

aggravating factor and accuse the defendant MLLIAM NEAL FRANCE of committing said

otsn.. *rJ thut the defendant's conduct duing the commission of this offense manifested

deliberate cruelty to the victim, under the authority of RCW 9.9aA'535(3[a)'

COI.TNT XTV

And t, Daniel T. Satterberg, Proseouting Attomey aforesaid further do accuse WILLIAM

NEAL FRANiCE ofthe crime of ielony Harassment, based on a series of acts connected

together with another crime charged herein, commi1ed as follows:

That the defendant WILLIAM NEAL FRANCE in King County, Washington' on or

about January l2,21ll, having been previously convicted on September23,2009, of the crime

of F.lony Violation of a CourtOrder against a person specifically named in a no-contact or no

harassmint order, without lawful authority, knowingly did threaten to causo bodily injury

Danlet T. Satterberg Prosecuting Attorney
1V554 King County Counhousc
516 fiird Avcnuc
Scdtlc, Washhgton 98 104

(206) 2%-9000, FAx (205)2%'0955
AMENDED INFORMATION.9
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immediatety or in the futtge to Nina Beach, to subjectNina Beachto physical confinement or

,rrt 
"int, 

to maliciously do an act intended to substantially harm Nina Beach with respect to her

;-hr;iJ", mental heaith or safety; and the words or conduct did place Nina Beach in reasonable

fear that the threat would be carried out;

Contrary to RCW 94.46.020(l), (2), and against the peace and dignity of the State of

Washington.

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney for King County in the-name and by

the authority lf tne State of Washirgtoo further do allege the crime involves the following

aggravating factor and accuse me defendant WILLIAM NEAL FRANCE of committing said

offense and that the defendant's conduct during the commission of this offense manifested

deliberate cruelty to the victim, under the authority of RCW 9.9aA'535(3Xa)'

COUNT XV

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attomey aforesaid further do accuse WILLIAM

NEAL FRANCE of the crime of ielony Harassment, based on a series of acts connected

together with another crime charged herein, committed as follows:

Thatthe defendant WILLIAMNEAL FRAI.ICE in King county, wastingtoq on or

about January 25,?Oll, having been previously convicted orr September2l,zA}g,of the crime

oirrtony violation 
"ru 

Coortbrderlgainst a person specifically named in a no.-contact oi no

harassment order, without laufrrl autho-rity, knowingly did threaten to cause bodily injury

immediately or in tfr. fot*. to Nina Beacti, to subjectNina-Beach to physical confinement or

resfiaint, to maliciousrv a, * *t intendedio subsiantially harm Nina Beach with respect to her

;iyri..i"r mental fr"uitft or safety; and the words or oonduct did place Nina Beach in reasonable

fear that the threat would be carried out;

ContrarytoRCW9A.46.020(l),(2),andagainstthepeaceanddignityoftheStateof
Washington.

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney for King County in the name and by

the authority of tnr Stut of Wurtlogon furthei do allege the crime involves the following

aggravating factor and accuse the defendant WILLIAMNEAL FRANCE of committing said

offense and that the defendant's conduct drrring the commission of this offense manifested

deliberate cruelty to the victim, under the authority of RCW 9.9aA.535(3)(a)'

COUNT XVI

And I, Daniel T. satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney aforesaid further do accuse WILLIAM

NEAL FRANCE of the crime of Felony llaraJsment, based on a series of acts connected

lo!"*r"r with another crime charged herein, committed as follows:

That the defendant WTLLIAMNEAL FRANCE in King county, was]t]14on, on or

about January 2g,2lll, having been previously convicted on September 23'2009' of the crime

Daniet T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attomey
W554 King CourtY Courthouse

516Third Avenue
Seadc, Washington 9E I 04
(206) 296.9000, FAx (206) 2964)55

AMENDED INFORMATION - IO
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of Felony Violation of a Court Order against I person specifically named in a no contact or no

harassment order, without lawful authority, knowingly did threaten to cause bodily injury
immediately or in the future to Nina Beach, to subject Nina Beach to physical confinement or
restraint, to maliciously do an act intended to substantially harm Nina Beach with respect to her

physical or mental health or safety; and the words or conduct did place Nina Beach in reasonable

fear that the threat would be carried out;

Contrary to RCW 9A.46.020(l), (2), and against the peace and dignity of the State of
Washington.

And I, Daniel T. Satterberg, Prosecuting Attorney for King County in the name and by
the authority of the State of Washinglon further do allege the crime involves the following
aggravating factor and accuse the defendant WILLIAM NEAL FRANCE of committing said

offense and that the defendant's conduct during the commission of this offense manifested

deliberate cruelty to the victim, under the authority of RCW 9.94A.535(3Xa).

Mark Larson, WSBA #15328
Senior Deputy Prosecuting Attorney

Drnlel T. Sattcrberg, Prosecuting Attorney
W554 King County Couthousc
516 Third Avenue
Scaslc, Washhglon 98 t04
(206) 296-9000, FA,Y (206) 296-0955

DANIEL T. SATTERBERG

24

AMENDED INFORMATION - I I
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ORIGINAL COURT MINUTES

'FAGE *: 10

*-Ncs:tffii? sBB*rBx'Eou** 
EruTtD'

CRIMXNAI, TRIAL CALENDAR CAI,ENDAR DAIE: LO/L9/201L
RONALD KESSLER

.I(IDGE:

CoURt CTERK: ANGIEVILLALOVOS couRr REPSRTER

CASE No: 1L-1-01715-6 sEA

DEEtsNDAIIT: ERANCE, WXTLIM N

TRUE NAI{E:
CCN:00566?4
EXP! 11-11-1X

CO.DEFENDA}'ITS:

' CIIARGET fEL STAIKING W,/AGG 3CTS

ARR DATE! 03/08/?OLL
LOC:4N1IUC05
INT:
oRIGINAL TRIAL DATE: 05/02/201L
CoMMENCE DATE: 03-08-L1
TRIAL SET EXF: 05-07-11

MOTION .IUDGE *: HON. 000
AE'EIDAVXT:

ACEION:

}iOLD TO

DPA: KXNG COUNTY, PROSECUIING ATT

ATD: TODDr BRfAN JAI'IES

2061180"t50

s.DAY EXIENSION TO

CONT . CONTINUED TO

60190 wArvER EO

-AssrGNED ro,r'*EWZ-
PIEA - SENT TO

STRIKE

BEN . BENCH WARRANE TO BE ISSUED

DSMHRG - ORDER OF DISMISSAI,

. - ORDER SICNED/ORDER TO BE PRESENEED
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CLERK'S MINUTES

SCOMIS CODE: GPOH

Judge: Steven Gonzalez DePt.S
Bailiff: Christina Jaccard Date: 1A11812011

Court Clerk: Andre Jones
Reporter: Joanne Leatiota

Digital Record:

KING COUNTY CAUSE NO.: 1 1-1-01 715-6 SEA

State of ltUashington vs. Wllliam France

Appearances:

Mark Larson, appearing, DPA for State of Washington

Brian Todd, appearing attorney for Defendant

MINUTE ENTRY

Respective counsel and defendant present

Cause comes on for Trial
Cts. 1-16 Felony Hanassrnent

Discussions on preliminary matters, rnotions, trial memos, trial schedule, jury selection
process

No CrR 3.5 or 3.6 hearings, No motion in limines

For lD OnlYState Exlribit 1 (Pre Trial)

Cause continued to 10-19-11 at 9am

Page 1 ot?



State of Washington vs" William France
King Gounty Cause No. '11-1-0I715-6 SEA

Date:10-{9-I1

Judge: Steven Gonzalez
Bailiff: Christina Jaccard

Court Clerk: Andre Jones
Reporter: JoanneLeatiota

Digital Record:

Continued from: 10-18-1 1

MINUTE ENTRY

Respeclive counsel and defendant present

Change of plea hearing. is held

Defendant withdraws plea of not guilty previously entered and enters a plea of guilty to
Cts. 3, 4, 6-9, 12,14,15 Felony Harassrnent

Sentencing date wilt be he[d on 11-10-11 at lprn before Judge Gonzalez Rm. W 941

Guilty Plea Order signed by all parties

Court adjourns

Page 2 ot 2
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c'iffliit,i,,,,,

SUPERIoRCotIRToFWASHINGToNFoRKINGcotINTY

STATE OF WASHINGTON,
)

Plaintiff, )
)
)
)
)
)

1.

2.

3.

4,

No.\\-\-0 ff \S-G St[

STATEI"CNT OF DEFENDA}IT ON

PLEA OF GUILTY TO FELONY

woN-SeX OFT',ENSE (STTDTG)

Defendant )
)
)

My true name is \\\'.\\s$.rN" *'srtN *-- - -

My date of bir& is 3 - \\ - \\sf ' '

I went through trr" , . \Ss - grade'

IIIA\'EBEENINT'ORMEDA}'[DFULLYUNDERSTANDTHAT:

(a) I have the rigtrt to reprcsentation by a lawyeC if I cannot afford to pay for a lawyer' one

will be provided at no expense to me' My lawyer's "*" i'

(b) I am charged withthe crime(s) of
(ti i.r,*{= \nc\r\da-_c\. q\S iw \,*rQC(r

m" 
"r"r"olo], 

Itil l"-t(s) are set forlh i" aJ*i'i"mion/-amended

whicb is inoorporated by reference and which I have reviewed with my lawyer'

FORMREV 8/4/2011

SiATEItGttl oF DEFENDAI'Ir oN PLEA or GUILTY

(Felony) - 1
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5, I IIAI{E BEEN I}TFORMED AND FULLY UNDERSTA}ID THAT I IIAVE THE

FOLLOWING IMPORTA}TT RIGHTS, AND I GTVE TIIEM ALL I'P BY

PLEADING GUILTY:

(a) The right to a speedy and public trial by 6 imfartial jr:ry in the cormty where the crime

is alleged to have been committed;

, (b) The right to remain silent beforE and during tial, and the right to refuse to testiry against

myself;

(c).Therightattriattotestisandtohearandquestionthewitresseswhotestiffagainstme;

(d) The right at tial to have witnesses testify for me' These witnesses can be made to

appear at no exPense to me;

(e) The right to be presumed innocent untii the oharge is proven beyond a reasonable doubt

or I enter aPtea of guiltY;

(0 The right to appeal a determination of guilt after a trial'

6, IN CONSIDERING TIIE CONSEQUENCES'OF VTY GUTLTY PLEA(S)' I
I}NDERSTA}.ID TIIAT:

(a)Thecrime(s)witbwhichlamohargedcarriesas€,ntencds)of:

Efr-an-ementThatwillBe
aAr{ad ta Stendard Ranee

Ma:<imumTerm
and FineColrnt

No.
StandardRange ,

vears

$_At-u C vears
.-\ 7

$ {6.fsG-b, 4,
9.. -l S\-qS rr.o \f\\ A

vears

$_ErY
i).$\.\S

FORMREV 8/412011

siareMENT oF DEFENDAIIT oN PLEA oF GUILTY

(FeIonY) - 2
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The crime of most serious.offense as

RCW 9.94A.030, and ifl have at least convictions on separate in this

state, in federal court, or lo be aPersistent

Offender. If I am be a Persistent Offender, the Court impose the mandatory sentence

of life without the possibilitY of earlY of any kind. RCW 9.94/.,

applicable, this paragrapb shouldbe sticken and initialed by the defendant and the j

. (b) The standard sentence range is based on the crim.e chareed and my criminal history'

Criminal history inoludes prior convictions andjuveniie adjudications or convictions, whether in

this state, in federal courg or elsewherc.

(c) The prosecuting attorney's staternent of my odminal history is attached to this agreemenL

unless I have attached a differcnt cratenxent, I agreethat the proseouting attomey's statement is

correct and complete. If I have attached my own statement, I assert that i1 is conect and complete'

If I am convioted of an1 additional crimes betrueen now and thetime I amsentenced' I am obligated

to tell the sentencing judge about those eonviotions'

(d) If I am convicted of any new crimes before seutenoing or if any additional criminal

history is discovere4 both.the staudard sentence range and the proseouting attomey's

recom.mendations may increase or a mandatory sentence of tife imprisonment vdthout possibility of

parole may be required by law. Even so, I sannot change my mind and my plea of guilty to this

charge is binding on me.

(e) In addition to sentencing me to confineman! the judge will order me to pay $500 as a

victim,s compensation fimd assessmentand a $100 DNA fee. Ifthis crime is afelony drug violation

ofRCW Chapter 69.50, tbejudge will impose an additional fine of $1000 ($2000 if this is not my

FORMREV 8/412011

STATEMENT OF DEFENDANT ON PLEA OF GUILTY

@elony) - 3
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first such conviction) unless the judge finds thatl am indigent. If this crime resulted in injury to any

person or damages to or loss ofproperly, the judge will order me to make restittrtion, unless

exfiaordinary circr:mstances exist whichmake restihltion inappropriate. The judge may also order

that I pay a fine, court costs, attomey fees, and other costs and fees, and place other rcstictions and

requiremenB upon me. Furthermore, the judge may place me on community custody'

(D In addition to confinement, if the total period of confinement ordered is more than 12

months, the judge will sentence me to the pdriod of community custody, unless the judge

finds substantial and comPelling to do othenvise:

to July 1, 2000: for a drug offense, assault 2, assault of a ehild

Z,oterry ariae p"rroo where there is a fmding that I or an accomplice l)vias anned with a

deadly 6ne year; for any vehicular homicide orfor a assault by being underthe

or by operation of a vehicle in a reckl as mutne,r){^onthsi for a serious violent offense'

two yea$.

For orimes committed on or after
', 

zOOO,and prior to August l, 2009, as follows:

D Serious viole'lrt
tr Violentoffense:

For crimes

El Crimes aeai
months.

or violation of RCW 69.50 or 69.52. arange of 9to 72

For crimes onor after August L,2OO9, as follows:

tr ious violent offense: 35 montbs.

tr Violent offense: 18 months.

tr Crimes against pemons or violation of RCW 59

The longest applicableperiod of community custody imposed. During the Period of

commuuity custody Imay be under the

have restrictions and requirements

FORMREV 8/4/2011

STATEMENT OF DEFENDA}IT ON PLEA OF GUiLTY
(Felouy) - 4

69.52: 12 months.

'arange of}4to 36 months.
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me to a more restrictive confinement status or

\ tteo { .F rst\

. Nincli\\
,ffi)r,t"}"SE .*XffiX

,Y

senieuce Recommeudatior! which are incorporated by reference.

e) The julge does not have to follow anyone's recommendation as to sentence. The judge

must impose a sentence within the standard range unless there is a finding of substantial and

compeiling reasoos notto do so or both parties stipulate to a sentbnce outside the sandard range' If

&e judge goes outside the standard range, either I orthe state oan appeal that sentense to the exte|f

to which it was not stipulated. If the sentence is within the standard range, no one can appeal the

sentence.

(i) The crime of has a mandatory

at least 

- 

Years oftotal The law'does not allow anY

For crimes committed on or 24,2005, this does not aPPIY to

sentence of

ofthis sEntence.

0) The crime charged in Count

sentence enhancement of

FORM REV 8/4/2011
STATEMENT OF DETENDAT.IT ON PLEA OF GUILTY
(F'elony) - 5

tried as adults

firearm I deadly weaPon

months. This

pursuant to a transfer "rryr{**rn 
under RCW 13.40.110 (see}& 9'944.540(3)' /ifb\ |

applicable, this paragraph should be stricken anlinitialed by the defendant and judge W
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additional confinement time is man 'ry mdmust be seruei.dnsecutively to any other

sentence and any other enhagdment I have akeady ydived orwill receive in this or any

other cause. this paragraph should be stricken and initialed by the defendant

and the ?-4''\otrr.StQ
oo oo*o tz j rt t)f"xcept for any weapons enhanoement,(k) The setrtences imPosed

will nrn concurrenfly unless there is a finding of substantial and compelling reasons,to do othenvise'

[f not applicable, this paragraph should be sticken and initialed by the defendat and judge

.l

(1) For the crime of vehioular homiside finder theinfluence of liquot or

any drug, the sentence will be i two yea$ for eachPrior as definedioRCW

time is mandatory aaa6ust be served consecutively to

any.other any other euhancemeot I have received or will receive inthis or any

other this paragraph should be sticken and initialed by the defendant and

the i

(m) Counts -, arc offenses alilsinerffom separate and distinct

criminal conduct and thE sentences counts will nrn cogSdutivety unless the judge finds

(n) The judge may sentence megrdfitst-time ofhnder asehtgnce

withiu the standard range if I sentencemaY include as much as

90 days of confnement of the conditions in paragraph (O(e). The judge also may

require me to to devote a speoific ocoupation, and to purs:e aprescribed

FORMREV 8/412011

Srefer'Aprvr OF DEFENDANT ONPLEA OF GUILTY

(Fetony) - 6

substantial andcompellingy(onsto do otherwise. qrry3|le, this paragaph should be

seickenand initialed by the defendant andthe judge lW ,-
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oourse ofstudy or occupational taining. itiorr, I maybgsdtenced to up to 6 months or, if

li@(e, this paragraph shouldheatment is ordered, 12

be stricken and initialed bf hedefendantandthe judge SJ

(o) The judge may sentence me under the special drug offender sentenoing alternative

(DOSA) if I qualiff under former RCW 9.94/-.12}(6) (for crimes committed before July 1, 2001)'

or RCV/ 9.94A.660 (for offenses committed on or after July 1, 2001). This sentence could include a

period of totat confinement for one-half of the midpoint ofthe standad range or 12 months,

whichever is greater, and comrnunity cr:stody of at least on+half of the midpoint of the standard

rurge, plus all of the other conditions described in parag5qph (6Xe)' Tbe judge could impose a

residential teatment-based DoSA altemative that would inolude tlree to six months of residential

chemical dependenoy treatncent andr4,months of comnrunity custody, plus all the other conditions

described in paragraph (6xe). During confinemeut.and communrty custodyunder either alteroativg

I will be required to participale in substance abuse evaluation and treahnent, not to use illegat

coufrolled substances and to zubmit to testing to monitor tha! and other restrictions and

requirements will be placed on me. [If not applicable, this paragraph should be stricken and

initialed by the defendant and the judge 

- -'l
G) The judge may sentence me under the ing sentencing alternativep{qualifr under

RCW 9.94A.655. A sentence under that- ve would consist of a 12 months of

community custodY, PIus all of conditions described in (O(e). Dwins

community custody, i will !/tequired to follow conditions i by the court and the

is paragraph should be stricken and initialed by the

FORMRS/ 8/4/2011
STATEMENT OF DEFENDANT ON PLEA OF GUILTY
(Felony) - 7
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(q) This plea of guilty will result of my privil 
"gr6anu"under 

RCW

46.20.28s (rX3), (s)-(7). If I 'a driver's license, I rauptinow stnrender it to the j

app iicable, this paragraph be skicken and initiated by the defendant andthe

(r) I understand ttrat RCW 46.20 .285(4) requires that my driver's license be revoked

judge finds I used a motor vehiole in the comgisdon of ttris feloay'

(s) If this orirne involvos a sgr.rr'foffense, prostitution' or a &rya€eWa associated with

WW:6ot peDpte this paragraph should be stioken and initialed by the defe,rrdant and the

juds

(t) If I am not a ciltzenof the United States, a plea of guilty to an offense punishable as a

crime under state law is grouuds for deportation, exclusion from admission to the United States, or

deoial of naturalization pr:rsuant to the laws. of the united stetes.

(u) I wilt be required to provide a biologicat sample for purposes of DNA identifroation

analysis.

(v) Because this crime offe,nse iavolving a

minor, I wili be required to withthe sheriffof the the state of Washington where I

residq study, or work. are clescribed in ttlb "Offender

Registation" Attachmenlz

defendant and thejudgb

(w) This plea of guilty will result in the revocation of my right to possess' own' or have in

my contol ary firearm gnless my right to do so is restored by asuperior court in Washington State,

roRM REV 8/4/2011

Sfercrrrparr OF DBFENDAI{T ON PLEA OF GUILTY

(Felony) - 8

or r.rnlavfi:i

[Ifnot
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l4
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16

r7

t8

19

20

2l

22

aod by a federal cotgt if reqrrired. I must iamediately sunender any concealed pistol license. RCW

9.4t.A40.

(x) I will be ineligible to vote until that right is restored in a manner provided by law. If I

am registered to vote, my voter registration will be cancelled'

(y) Becarxe this is a crime of ic viole,nce, I maY be pay adomestic

violence assessment of uP to If I, orthe vistim of the ori aminor chil{ the court

may order me to in a domestic violence program apProved uader RCW

26.50.15 this paragraph should. be stricken and initialed by the defendant and

the judge

(z) Because this crime involves the delivery, or with iritent to

deliver methamPhetaminq salts, isoraers, and saltryrffsomers, or amphetanrine,

including its salts, cleanqp fine of $3000 will be

assessed. RCW 69.50,401(2Xb). [If not 
"gfup1., 

this paragraph should be stricken and initialed

by the defendant and the judg" \4
(aa)Because this crime nvolveg*wolation ottke *ffMlaws, my eligibility for state

and federar food stamps , nety6 *aucotioo u"rydu be affected. 20 u.s.c. g 1091(r) and

21 u.s.c. $ 862a O, 

:(, ly"W*"should 
be stricken and initialed bv the

defendant aud tbejudge

Ob) Because the crimes I sa Srilty to include both a rnrderRCW

9.41.040 forunlaurfirl io{of afuearm.in the first ot degree and one or more

convictions for the of theft of a firearm or of a stolen firearm, the

sentences imposed-;(rthese crimes shall be smied ively to each other. RCW

FORM REV 8/4/2011

bierrrnmm oF DEFBNDANT oN PLBA oF GLTILTY

(Felony) - 9
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10

11

L2
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L4

15

t6

77

18

t9

20

21

22

le, this paragraph should be stricken and initialed by the defendant

. (co) If I have Washington State volrrnteer firefighters.vehicle license plates, I must surrearder

those license plates at the time this plea is entered.

N.r.{fu,}**. .,\\fnr,n\r. lrn ,=tr^s!\l 1,4ih.+oL-r9=.1 )\t!oob S

as charged io,r,, irf*rlu,ro.v 
- 

GN:\c.S:)tH"h"$}F*l"ht ar charged

enhancements and domestic violence designations. I have received a copy ofthat information'

8. I make ttns plea freeiy and voluntarily'

9. No one has threatened harm of any kind to Ine or to any other person to cause me to make

this plea.

10. No person has made promises of any krnd to oause me to enter this plea except as set

forth in this statement'

I 1. Ihe judge has asked me to state briefly in my own words what I did that makes me

guilty of this"(these) crime(s), including enhancements and domestio violence relationships, ifttrey-- \ q\us*O \ q\$ \YI*KN

FORM P&Y 814/2011

STATEMENT OF DEFENDANT ON PLBA OF GUTLTY

(Felony) - 10

i\L

LH
\ree- *L$\

0a$s-

7. I plead guilty to the crime(s) of
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J

8

9

l0

II

L2

l3

L4

15

16

r7

18

19

20

21

22

12. My lawyer has explained to me, and we have fully discussed, all of the above

I undershnd them all, I have been given a copy of this "Staternent of Defendant on

Plea of Gui19.' I have no firrther questions to askthejudge'

I have read and discussed this statement

with the defendant and believe that the

I find the defendant's plea of guilty to be knowingly, intelligently and vcjlrrntarily-T:9?'.1:

defendant understands the charges and the **{u"o"o oith" plea. There is a factual basis for the
-4

GbNZfl.E
FORM REV 8/4/2011

irarpr,rrmvr oF DEFENDAI{T oN PLEA oF GUILTY

(Felony) - 11

The foregoing statement was signe.d by the defelrdant in open cotrt in the presence of the

defendanfs lawyer and the unclersigned judge. The defendaut asser-ted that [check appropriate box]:

t I (a) Thc defe,ndant had pteviously read; or

Vfr) flre defendant's lawyer had previously read to him or her; or

t ] (c) A11 interpreter had prcviousty reaa to-the defendant the entire statement abovg

and that the defendantunderstood it in full:

defendant is comPetent andftllY

FnosrcurnIGATToRNEY

wsBA# | s] zt



Defendant:
SEAiI(NT

Dare ofcrime, N)o,; ?oro - \s.hzor\
tJ'.\er.,,r Fro-..-

On Plea To: As

The Sate of Washingon and the defendaut enter into this PLEA AGREEMENT which is a99$g ogy jy a guittyplea This

"gfi*t may be rfrthdrawn at any time prior to entry of tlte guilty plea. The PLEA AGREEMENT is as follows:

gflhe p original *- umended in&Injjon
tr With SpecialI
9.94A.510(4); tr
10.99.020; Et other

tr This is part of an indivisible agreement that includes cause number(s):

*itioo ffiqo ,EfrvEfffittn" State moves to dismiss:

E] REAL FACTS OF EIGEEruN{ORE SE,RIOUS AI.{D/OR ADDITIONAL CRIMES: IN ACCOTdANCE With RCW
gSaA.it3g, thi-p*tt"JtuuJrtifut.t d that the following are real and matedal facts for purposes ofthis sente,ncing:

fi; Ini A* set forth'in the certification(s) foidetermination of probable cause and prosecutor's summary'

trThefactssetforthintrAppendixC;E , . , ,-- .. --------'.
The defendant acknowleilges 

"na 
tiiirit 

"oV 
rigUt onable doubu

EI RESTITUTION: pursuant ro RCW g.g4A.753, the defe,ndant shall pay re*itution !n full to the victim(s) on charged counts

and EI agrees to pay restitution in the specific amount of $ #
EI agrees to paY restihrtion

trEI,ONYPLEAAGREEMENT

Date: tO-\q- \\
CauseNo: \\-\-Off \S-b SEA

fffiF4[ffi$; tr deadyw&pon oGGi-ttran firearm, RCw
protccted zone, RCW 69.50.435; tr domestic violence, RCW

l&.{ 1o.lr,t1,ll

inCount(g 3,U ,6J

tr OTIfiR:

;.E Td d"frnU*rrgru.iio Oi! Ftea ier."ment;d that the attached seqtencing ggidelines. scorinE form(s) (Appendix A),
ffmrter score, and the attaihea proiecutols Unaerstanaing ofDrf.na"nt'r Criminalllistory (Appendix B) are accurate andoFffi*-r.or,."a tuJ"tt iuraEoiecutols Understanaing ofDefendant's criminillr;tory (Appeudil B) ar.e.acgra! ana

;;;G;tifiirr" a"r."-a*t;*_;a6;t t"q bi;rdi orwaived counse.l at the time or.plior conviction(s). The State makes

rhe qenrcnninc recnmmmdation set forth in the Sta,:te;s'setence recommendation. An essentiil term of this agrtement is the . -

complete and that the defendaot was_represented by counsel orwaived counset at the time of-pnor convlcuon(s)' rtre stare l

i;A;;.irs'*""*"*e;tid;;tfgfii" tdsait';s '"t"1"" 
recoylel!1i:: !-f.:-"gi"lp-,:l11iiryi,*T,-T:

i*:in$:s**,i*i,x[***r8sfl*.*S?*.fl f tr"g j"party is bormd by anY term of this*tlrbo..-4by""Vi"r,oof6ii-q*""menr. 6rf.^1i$t o,3<c&i +lr<t h{, t'.r.s le Qr
U. fo-ft" aeeriaunl aispoies tn" *osecutofs Stakment of thebefendant's Criminal History, as follows: :

"dtrfls' .i"*.)r.r.1

(1) Conviction: Basis:

c. tr Th ore convictions from otber jurisdictionS have Oeen mcruoeo rtr ule ouetroEr

,.;;, *drsor ia"t ttese conuictions have been proliriy iocloaea and scortd according to the comparable offense definitions

provided by Washington law.

;x?Hfrffi ffi ':?:":K#edeft 
ndantagceesthatheorylext,notregles\

di €A.\ 'isuotmoreth"o S-yei.sea"naoa$ [6,bON rne
yj:ilT',* "i"ount(r- '

CRII/IDIAL IUSTORY AI{D OFFENDER SCORE:

Maximumon Count(s) is not more than
each.

E MandatoryMinimum Tenn(s) pursuantto RCW 9.94A.540 only:

years each and $ 

-fine
E Mandatory weapon sentence enhancemeat for Corm(s) ..-.rq .......-- months each; for
on,rnr{c\ is - 

niritse""T. Tfiiffi"seEAitionaten:r(s)mustbeservealconseortivelyto
each oi6e@ without any erned earlydease.

Tte state's recomnendationwill increase in severity if additional criminal convictions are found or if the defendantcomrnits any

""rv "nrrgeA 
or unchargeJ crimo, Aits to appear f6r sentencing or viola{ th1 conditiopE ofretase'

KING cOIlI.lTy ?ROSECUTNG ATTORMY (Rcviscd 6/2010)
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GENEML SCORING FORM

Nonviolent Offenses

uso rhb b.r|l onty fo. the toltowtng otrsnsE: Abendotrmeni d Do.ndeot P.Eonr I .nd 2: Abrltact of otlp !YP: - rlrcnu3Jrl uca:

Advardng Mootry Lr proparry fur Eriotlonatc E(cndqr of cradrB ArJrull 3i A'rlut by Wrtrtcafl: Asrsult ot i chlld 3; Ba[ Junplng wilh cl.rs A

fAony: ait .lomptne t.,|n Ctii.s S ub fafny; emc Rac.hr{d by tMh.€ti Bdbltyi Btlblng . Wiur6Bl ciomnr.dsl gtlb.tt': CqrPutot TmsPr$ li
i:*;;i;rt"td,r, -?tonrfa6n a vir.* cnaier nan 3to,oooi &rmbrt ury - Errltplqg F\tbtlc !1o10t & srfolv; Grlmlnsl Gang- lndmldotlodi

crlmlnql Mlatreeknant I i Brc zi cuslodlal A.t.ul[ Domrdc vlol€nc€ coud ofoar vot{on; Oetivary of bnirt0orr confollod sub.tence by Pot m tB

or Ovor to parlon und6 roi obnai-algmtures iraud; Edorilon 2 Ertodloaate Ed.aslon or crcdt acoruonlle Mornr to cotoc! Erbn,lons od

Crs.1g Felro vorlficagoa tor warraie: Firged proacdpuon G6e6nd Orug)i FoO€d Proscrlpllon to. e Controllod Subttencoi ForgcQ': Hatattmtfili

Hlelth cgr FdrE CLlmsi Htt uro iun w]h Ve$et. td,1y fiaO"r,t fiprop"try obialnlng Flnarrial ln{onna$o$i ldqotltv Theft 1 .nd 2; lncl(ns

cr11nlnrt p1ofitc6rlilg3 lndr6nt Er$rre to Pcnorr u+dirAgo lrtl lnilusnclng Outootn" ol 
",spotdng 

Eronh htlmldatlilg t Judgei lnllmldatlng 
'

Jur.o,: Intintd'flrrg 
" 

prHt" s.*ric iitlrroadng. wltn€"r: ttcn{mal lnltlctlo-n of lniury c Doalh lo Guldo Dogi lnrodsdta cont€bsnd I and 2;

M.Idans Erplo.ton 3i Maltdors X"i"iir"nq il"fidous lnjury to Re[road P,!prrt/; Maniioul Mlrctrts, l..nd e Mallciot r Pbcrmrnt of Exploelvos 2

rnd q Mailda;r pl.oaneat ol nn"iton oarlca I snd a i,r"nuf"or,*, OdtrUrrc. o. Pocr6 wllh lntonl lo Dh&lDsie an ,ndtatlod Contollcd

Subrbnc.; pqrsry I rnd z: p.'sirui prt"on Mbbohsvlori Po$rldon oi s Stolon Flrlmtr; Potlostloo of t cont ollad SubGttnca t'rtl lr H{oh ot

a Nanogc f,o|!! sdrodul€ ! or ll cr| Flunltzarem fr!ilt schcdule Ni Porslltlon of r conbo8od subslsn@ lhet l. r Nrrcot! t'!"1 sc'ro&lo lll'v ot

, Nonnarco(o trcm gchsdule l.V (Acapt pip or Fhrnlbar.prn), Po!.sEdon of lo6n(,.ty oavlcg; Po6e6$lon ol Uacttho Gun or shotl'Bomhd

Shohm or Rl,loi po33.3ston or pninoy"ian" (pc4; eoor"oroir of Sloton Popsrty t eni 4 ponntlng Prutftrtbn I rad 2; Recu6$ Arnhc 'l;

Rond.dng Cdrilmt A.s'trtsnco tl sccrrtua ra vtotiti-; stsildr€i T.klng uaor vaiur tlltlto{ Pgl'stm;Ormperlng *lth ! Yvibts6sl Tolo9hql'

H.f!.3tnanq Thefl t end Zr fnon-ot anfryOrotr Ammonia; ne-n a a Freann; Ttrcft of WoEioGk I and 2i Thclt of Rontsl' Leaged. or Le83e'

$$chrse pfop.fty.clssa B and cl rrrieatrio aomoi Tilt0cklllE ln lnsurir€s ohhri Trs(lckh0 h stolon ProgG.ty 1 and 2. unlavt't kngrhonm'nll

Unlawfirl l&ru.nca of Ch.eks or Or"ii; Unfa*frf ioraoscLn'ol ! Flmrm I .nd 2i Unlswful P'actha ol Ltwi Untlstul S(o'agt of AnhWrcu'

Ammontsi Untlt,rut Uro ot 6 Protoeglonal Tlttcl Unlswrt l or. ot bdOhg tot Orug PT1*9.: g*yl,l^U3'ol Food StlmP8i Unllcmsed Praclics ol a

tuogion or Surtnosol unusao prcie'iti il;;;il;iiG; ; p-.""0" oicr-t-iptotiirodng; Vghhle Powl tl Volhc Vlohllon-M'll gallol

OFFENDER'S NAME

II'TI -T.TA M NT',^T, N'R ANCE

OFFENDER'S DOB

(t"tlll195l
STATE ID#

wa10356245

JUDGE CAUSE#

rt-1-0171$5 SEA

FBIID#

6n(<o4Nl

Doc#- 626275

JI.J\ENITE HISIOM/:

Entor numbor ofs€dous vlolent and violent falony dlspodtlons

ln the case of muldple prlor convlc[ons for ofiens€s commltted deioro,ruty 1, '1986, for purposes of computng thB offend€r scor6'

count all adult conviciions soored concurEnuy ss ono orense eM anl,Gile corMcdons elrtere! on the same data as one offense

(Rc1r9.94A"525).

ADIJLTHET.RY:------.Jr---brr"--b-
Entet number o, felonY oonvlc0ons

-x

1

%
Enter nunber of othar nonviolent felony dbpodtonr

oTHER CURRENT OFFENSES (thee orfrrces not encorrpassbtg he €ame cfi|riId cordud)

Ent€r number of other felony convlc,tbns -'.
8 * r =-&-

STATIEATTIME OFO.FFENTOFFEI\ISES comryunity ?lacement 09-1-05185-9
lf on communlty placemant at timE of curent ofiense' add 1 polni

ril=

It hc court orders a dasdty woapon edtano€ment, us6 lha appllcable enhancoment sheets on p€gss lll-18 q [l-20 b oalculate the

enhancsd sentenP.

Muttiply tha range by Z5% lf hs cunEnt olrens€ is an atemp! con+lracy or solicita-Eon-und-6r RCW 9A28' For Possess'lon of a

cor*iolreo suo*ance or Forged Pragcdp0on ofa conbolled srsstancg' eae RC:w 69'50'407'

Adult Scntencing Maoual 200 I
IIIJ3
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APPENDIX B TO PLEA AGREEMENT
PROSECIITORTS UNDERSTAIYDING OT' DETENDAI'{T'S CRIMINAL EISTORY

(SENTENCING REFO RM Ac"T)

Defendant: WILLIAM N FRANCE FBINo.: 606594N1 StateIDNo.: WA10356245

DOCNo.: 626275

This criminal history compiled on: February 23r20ll

Aalult Felonies
Offensc

Adult Misdemeanors
Olfense

Score Dsposition

Score Disposition

None known. Recommendations and standard range assumes no prior felony convictions.

Criminal history not known and not received at this time. WASISNCIq ktst received on 08/1312!99

70233 1011817974

robbery 2
@ilry 0312811978 I year jail, 5
years deienedj parol revoked 20 years released from prison

8t22183

89-1-01068-9 01125/1989-i-iilp!to eiiroe pr*ri.g prii,'
,, + -,,,..,' -'

fVe fing Superior Court - Gltilty 0412411989 p/gurlty' serve

90dk cjail conc w/89'l'00954-S. 12m comm supervision' pay

costs/atty fees. pay w/pen asst $70.-
02-1-06390-6 09n6D001
felonv harassment

mffigEupertor Court - Guilty 02D112003 felony 12+m

doc.

05-1-04985-1 02D0tZ00s
felony telephone harassment dv'

WA Kiog Superior Court - Gl]jlty OOllTlZoUS telory l4m coc

ct 1. sntcd 12m jail suspd ct 2 (non-felony) conc ilct 1 ' serve

3m iail ct 2 conc wlct\.Vla Prot. ,

og-r+5res-g 08n02009
protection oitler-viol-prev co

WA King Superior Court - Guilty lullolzuov lvm ooc conc

dtuhwilamuni ct#cr0053819. 19m comm custody (dosa

sentence).

05-l-08744-3 0tlr8a00s
malicious mischief-2

W[Ring Superior Court - GuiJty 0912312005 4m Jarl c'onc

d05-r-04985-1.

99-toovJT{--lolrs/t999
takins vehicle' Wo permission

wA Lewis Superior court - Gulrty o ltzbtzuuv / mos LcJt Lz

mos comm super/lfo

99-r-00937-6 10115/7999
Dossess stolen nropertY 2nd d

wA Lewis Superior court - Guuty u l/zul.zuvu z mos lcJ/ rz
mos comm super/lfo

06ltav81
malicious mischief 3rd

@ttv
WmeattEfuiCipal Court' C uittYtn1lD83

malicious mischief
M6GMuniaiparcourt - GuiltYffi9sz

dui
v/A3eafiCffiiEf l' Court - GuiltYFfi02479 1211411984

dui ffiuilty03/1 1/1988

dwi
89-1-00954-8 10/14/198E
qffemnt fqkins motor vehicle

WA King Superior Court - uuuty v+tztt t>o> JU uay)

J92sr9 ru0a997
assault 4th

WA Southwest Div King Co Dist Lt - Gunry

Page 1



APPEI\DX B TO PLEA AGREEMENT
PROSECUTOR'S IJNDERSTAI.IDING OF DEFENDA}IrS CRIMINAL ItrSTORY

(SEI.ITENCING RETORIVI ACT)

Defendanil WILLIAM N FRANCE IBI No.: 606594N1 State ID No'; WA10356245

DOCNo.r 626275

Adult Misdemeanors
Offense Scort Dispoaition

gg-r-}4trt-s w241t998
harassment

@ Guilty 0ll0'1 12000 12m suspended'

80d iail.

00-1-03788-7 04D2r2000
assault 4th dv

WA King Supenor L:ourt- \rultty votz)tzuuu lzur turPu eeur'

serve 6m-jail, l2m corrm supv.09 17 01 ordmod sent,90d
iail

Y00302966 KC l0/01/2000
malicious mischief 3rd

WR Se"attte District Court' Guilty

02-1-10115-5 10/30/2002

attempt harassment

wA King superior court ' Guilty uzz uzuus non rerony lzrr
jail susp. tOOa jail.24m prob- 06 25 04 ord mod sent" serve

30d iail. 10d in ccap,

0s-1-04985-1 02n0D00s
misd tetophone harassment dv

@Gtutty 06117 l2oo5 felonY 14m doc

ct l. sntcd tCm jail zuspd ct 2 (non-felony) conc w/ct l' serve

2s iail ^t , ^^6. wlat 1 .24m nrob.

o6tr.rzs7s-l 0211112006

protection order violation (g
V/A King Superlor coun - uuuly uo/ I' o/zuuo r'u Jar DDPU

cts 1-3 cInc. 120djail. l2m prob' Ol 24 07 ord mod prob'

serve 60d jail, conc.d05-l-04985-1. 09 14 07 ord mod prob'

WEAv wA King superior cOUrt - Gullty uo/rol/uuo rzmJau susPt'r

cts l-3 dnc.l2Odjail.l2mprob' 01240'7 ordmodplob' 
.

serve 60djail, conJil05-1-o+ssS-t. 09 14 07 ordmodprob'
serve 185d iail.

oe-rozszs-t 02lltD006
theft-3 dv

We fing Superior Court - Guilty 06/16/2000 lzm Jau susPq

cts 1-3 cinc. I zldiail.lZm prbb. OL 24 07 ord mod prob'

r"*" eOai"U, conc il05-l'O+ggS't. 09 14 07 ord mod prob'

--*,- 1e</{ iril .

@auittvcR00538r9 TK 05102t2009

assault fourth degree - dv
Wm--duirbecorszsgree 0+12512$09

criminal tresoass-2nd degree
@itty488200 SP 0612412006

dv viol ordr ffiS"attiililtict Court - Guilty

ffifoffiwestbitEng Co Dist Ct - Guilty

coo4sszts ws 07/rcn004
drri
TZ0m026-fBU oenet2ooz
theft third desree @Guiltv

ffi Noffieast nlfuict Court - GuiltY

eRoo2186l RE osDsrzooz
disorderlv conduct
ffioriEodne ostzstzooz
assarrlt 4th desree

ittYffi6BU otDor2oo2
crim inal tresoass-2nd degree

Page 2
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APPEI\DD( B TO PLEA AGREEMENT
PROSECUTOR'S T]NDERSTANDING OT' DEF'ENDA}[:T'S CRIMINAL IIISTORY

(SENTENCING REFORM ACT)

Defendanr WILLIAMNrRANCE EBINo.: 606594N1 StateID.No': WA10356245

DOCNo.: 6262'ts

Adult Misdemeanors
Offcnse Score Disposition

cQ++s456a *a 0rlt7D002
dwls 3rd desree

ffi-Guilty
Y20013095 KC 0lllv2002
fcil f rq nsfer/ness/nav mef ro

WA Shoreline Div King Co District Ct - Guilty

Y10t47832 KC 05/0812001

theft third deEree

Fseatle Distict Court - GutltY

394834 SP rA30D0o9
harassment

WA Seatle Municipal Court - Guilry

594s6CT raBl999
dv orotection order vio

WA Centra[a Municipal Court - Guilty

990303899 KC 08llU,999
third desree theft

WA Southu,estDiv King Co Dist Ct - Guilty

990303899 KC 0811211999

harassment

WA SouthwestDiv King Co Dist Ct - Guuty

9900669s28U 0310t1t999
telenhone calls to harass

W[ Soi estDivKing Co Dist Ct - Guiltv

9900283098U 0ltz7tl999
third desree theft

ffi-Distct-Guilty
co16942KC KC 08nv,998+-_--'obstructins a oublic servant .l

WA Southwest Div King Co Dist Ct - Gullty

T00106655 SP-- -'.. 'l-tlL7t1990
.. ! -.. n\'resistins affeSt r'

wA $meDGffict Court' GuiltY

J00020300-Kc-" 08D01r989
neoliEent drivine

wA Seattle Distict court - Guflty

J00020300 Kc 08/2011989
dwls

WA Seattle Dishict Court - GutttY

100068518 KC r2ltur981
dui

WA Southwest Div King Co Drst L.t - sultty

100068518 KC tU1Ut987
hit and run unattended vehicl

@i$ct-cuiltv

s7295000a sp 10122t1987
d-u.i.
E72950004SP 70n2tt9E7
susn.ol.

WA SeattleMunicipal Court- Guttty

aorsgo4:a sp 0610811986

d.u.i.

WAEeattle Municipal Court - Gurlty

36'1i9049a sp 06108/1986
su.sn-ol^

WA Seattle MuniciPal uourt - uuuly

852170015 SP 08/0s/1985
menacing

WA SeattleMunicipal Court - OuLlty
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APPENDf,K B TO PLEA AGREEMENT
PROSECUTOR'S UNDERSTAI.IDING OT' DEFENDAIIT'S CRIMINAL MSTORY

(SENTENCING REFORM ACr)
Defendant WILLIAMN.BRANCE EBINo.: 606594N1 StateIDNo': WA10356245

DOC No.: 62627,5

Juvenile Felonies - Noue Known

Juvenile Misdemeanors - None Known

Comments

Prepared by:

Chanthavy San, CCA
Deparbnent of Correotions
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Date of Crime:

(usEFoR
$ 'ls\o -

peg6a66ns \^ri\\roy\A \:!Atnsq,-,

STATE'S SENTEI{CE RECOMMENDA.I,:ION
NQII1LQSA SENTENCES Or oVEB9NLIEAB oM,Y)

o"te: lg_11_[t
causeNo.: ll-l-(-tl1l f- 6 StQ ssArNr

auy other referred 6 in this form.

ThE State recornmends tbat the defendant be sentenc.ed to a term of total confinement in the Department of Coaectioss 8s foflows:

60,@fa"eoocouns \tsSr. f ,V,6, l, B T 

-monthJdaysoncount-l
monthJdays on Count

\Lrl14,l5 months/days on Count

with credit for time serrred as provided undgr Tinms to be sened with each

MONETARY PAYMENTS: Dcfendaot shall make tbe followiag loonetary Pa)'tnents purzuant to RCw 9'94L753 and RCw 9'94'rt"760'

E0 Restitution as set forth in the'Plea AgreemenP pags and E = ' = , ' ,'lE Court cosE; r*"ariorv Ssoo victimp-eoalty Assesuent and Stoo pNl couection fec; recoupment of cost for sppohted couusel'

E King County hcalDnrg Fund $-; tl $rco lab fec-(RC'tF/ 43'43'690)'

tr finJof$_; g $1,OOO frneforWCSe; tr $2,000 ftne 6rsubsequentYuCSA.

tr Costs of incarcetation in K.C. Jail at $50 pu day (RCW 9.944-760(2))'

E Emergencyrespons&costs$-itcwsb.sz.+r0); tr Extraditioncossof$--;E other--

COMMITi{ITY CUSTODy: for Erali$irg crimes, the deftndsnt shall scrve a tcrm of commuoity custody set forth below.

E Scriousviolent offenser] SO noDths (arangc of 24 to 36 roorths if cdute conurittedbefore 8/1/2009).

E Violentofense: 18 oonths
tr Crimes againsrprrsoos or violation ofCh. 69.50 or .52: 12 months (a rarrge of9 to 12 months if crirne commiEed before8ll2009).

como,uoit custody ii.r"a*i oi*arory suhrtory coaditious as well as discretiooary conditions set by the court or DepL of Correctioos. The state

recommends dtc court imposc tbesc discretionary couditions:

tr Obtafu an aicohoVsubstance abuseivaluation within 30 days ofrelease and follow atl teatrnent recommendations.

El Entcr into within 30 days of release, make reasonable progrcss in, andsuccessfulty complete state'certifiedDomestic Violence

MANDATORY CONSEQITENCES: HIV blood testiog @crII 70.24.340) for aoy prostiartioa related offb*j, or dnrg offeose associated with

needteuse. nu.LtestingGicw43.43.7s4). RevocationofrlghttopossersaFIREARM(Rcw9.41.040). DRTVER'SucENsE

npvocarron Bcw-46.20.2S5; RCril 69.50.420). REGIShRATION: Peruons convicted of some kidna/uopftl irUrisonmeat offens€s 8rc

requiredtoregisterpunusnttoRcwgA.44.l30. 
-,i 

t: Crn\v\n .-\Jlz-\>

'1,8,9
\,*.t}.

B

grttrr c z.r lt l,. '15,B- vT!siJ<,,evE/+ a- Y-\.\A - I -l .-t\ .Slr
qlEApoNs ENHA}{CEMENT - Rcw gJ4A.510: The above rwommended term(s) of confinement do not lElgdg the following weapons

enhancement tim€: _ months for CL _, 

- 

months for Ct. 

-, - 

months for CL 

-; 

whidr is/are mandatory, served

without good timo and served coosecutive to any other teun of confinemenL

TOTAL LENGTH OF CONFINEMENT recomrnended in this causq iocluding alt couot and Lnhanoements t / (9-rrroothr.

tr This is an agreed recommendation,

NO DRUG OFTENDER SENTENCE ALTERNATII/E (DOSA) - RCW 9.94A.660t' - n - 
O"i*Cr"t ir oot i"g11y eligibte fot DOSA Uecause tr qurrent ser or violent offense; E prior violent offeose-witbin t0 pars or any prior

.o "f.*r; O *,fi;i ;fu;menq E suUject o fnA eeportation oaer; E not small qusntity of dru8s; /more than oae prior DOSA

F
(A,^,*-\\ \.,,r (er,1q

Scf\, osA
[uxcorrroxAl qEITEl:cE: Ti: * ll .1.:tl:,tiT:*T' iyq'

withiu 10 years; [1 felony DLJI or physical consol.

Defendant is eligible but DOSA is not recornmcnded because

,ritune r g. are-set forth in tho $tached fonq or brief.
f Hf 'T:' ffi 'S"ti.l1?Tfif,:T yffi Tff .:; T;}Fil -q_?.,1:brs.i oi-'(.12 er'.r.,-6'e6rr*e)>r$l ^\) co-'*s q-n 'b\Srur ,!L oorrt'__aSii-T1u \t.: tt90l.

tr NOCOMACT: fortte'miimpirrote1u,defed4ntshalihsvcnocoract,hirrotorindireclinperson;inwitinEEytelephone,olthrough&i
parties, with:

testment.
E Other:'

KING COT'NIY PROSECUTING ATTORMY
Revised E/09

al sentence.
St]. f.
AJ c".

and compelling reasons for departing
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IN TIIE SI]PERIOR COIJRT OF WASHINGTON FOR KINO COIiNTY

STATE OF T,VASHINGTON, )
) No. I I-l-01715-6 SEA

)
)
) DEFENDANT'S

WILLIAM FRA"\CE, ) PRESENTENCE REPORT

Defendant. )

Plaintiff,

vs.

SENTENCTNG JTIDGE: STEVEN GONZALEZ

SENTENCING DATE: overober 10, 2011

CIIARGED CRIME: Felony Flarassmentx 9

OFFENDERSCORE: 14

STAIIIDARD RANGE: 5l to 60 months

I. DEFENDANT'S RECOMMENDATTON

The defendant respcctfully rcquesls that this court impose a sentence pusuant to the

Dnrg Offendcr Scntcncc Altcrnative (DOSA). This would result in 27.75 months iu custody aud

27.75 r:nonths'on commrurity custody' The defendant further requests that this court waive all

non-mandatory fines, fees, and assessmetrts'

Law Officc of Briao J' Todd
6523 Califomie Averus SW ii l?9

' Seettle' Wrshington 9tUl5'1833

DEFEliDAlrrs PRESENTENCE REPORT- r rr3?e,1'Ji;il*,,
BtoddTl@lrtIAIL.corn
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U. ARGUMENT

THE DEFENSE ASK T}IAT TIM COURT IMPOSE A SENTENCE PURSUA}iT TO
THE DRUG OFFENDER SENTENCING ALIERNATnTE (DOSA) RCW 9.944.660.

RCW 9.94A.660 provides that an offendEr is eligible for the special drug offcnder

sentencing alteraative if thc offender is convicted of a felony that is not a violent offense or sex

offense and the violation does not involva an enhanccment ulder RCW 9.94A.533(3) or (4); the

offender is convicted of a felony that is not a felony driving while under the influence of

intoxicating liquor or auy drug under RCW 46,61.502(6) or feiony physical control of a vehicle

while undsr the influence of iutoxicating liquor or any drug under RCW 46.61.50a(Q; the

offender has no curent or prior couvictions for a sex offense or violent offense withiJl tetr yoars

before conviction of the culrent offense, in this state, another stats, or the United Statcs; if it is a

drug offense under RCW 69.50 thcn the offense must iDvolve a small quarrtity; the o.ffendcr has

not been found by the United States altorney general to be zubject to a dcponation dEtainer or

order and does not become subject to a deportation order during the period of sentcnce; the

standard sentence range is greatsr than one year; and the offcnder has not receivetl a drug

offender scntonce altcmative more than oncc in the prior ten years bcfore tle surent offense.

RCW 9.944.660(1).

Given the languagc of thc DOSA statute stating a court "ma/'impose DOSA if the

statutory factors warrant it, we adopt the abuse of discretion standard for reviewing DOSA

eligibility determinations. RCW 9.94A.660(2); see 
.also 

St4te v. Conaers, 90 Wn.ApA.. at 53

(stating DOSA "may be applied in thc discretiou of the trial courf'provided statutory factors

HL?l'H?T#,illJ#u',
DEFENDAI,TTs pREsriNrENCE REpoRr- 2 i,ffi?#i'rlti::-"r35'rt33

F,{)( tr06) 917-5419
BloddT2@CMAIL.cmt
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apply) An abuse of discrelion ocqrrs if the ssntensing court's dccision is manifestly

unrcasonablc or based upon ulteuable grounds or rcasons. StAle. v. Stenson. 132 Wn.2d 668. 701,

g4O P 2d 1239 (1997). Stated anothcr way, Erl abuse of disc,rction occurs when no reasonablc

pergoll would adopt the trial oourt's vicw of thc issue. WiJliamg, 112 Wn.App. at 178'9 citing

Statev. Cas-Ellartos. 132 Wn.2d 94. 97,935 P.2d 1353 (1997).

Ihe irrposition of a DOSA would also mcct the purposes of the Sentcncing Reform Act.

The irnposition of ir DOSA sentencc for Mr, France would "protcct the public; offcr thc offender

an opportunity to improvc him or herself; make fnrgal use of the State's resources; and reduce

ttre risk of rc-offending by offenders in the cornmudty," RCW 9.94A.010 (4,5,6,7).

The imposition of a DOSA senten@ in this case is entirely within this Court's discretion.

Mr. France qualifies for a DOSA sentencc on all poinh of the statrrte including the lang'roge that

tle offsnder and the cornmrmity will benefit from the use of the altemative. RCW 9.944.660

(2), This would allow Mr. France to rc.ceive court orderedtrtalmeut that would allow him to'

uddt"*! addiction concerns,

As the Coun can see from Mr. France's criminal history, she has sevstal conviotions on

his records which would indicatc a substance abuse problem. Specifically, Mt, France has

several DUI convictions on his record.

The standard range is 51 to 60 rnontlrs. The rnidpint of that range is 55,5 rnonths. One

half of that is 27.t5 mouths which would be sewed in custody. The othcr 27.75 months would

be senred on commrrnity custody.

Mr. l'rance had actqally been givcn a DOSA sentence whioh resulted in his incarceration

this last time. From speaking with Mr. France, it appears as though he may not have understood

Lew Officc of Briau J. Todd
652l Calilornia Avcnue EW ll79
Scatllo, ltrasbhgton 9tll&1813
(206) T7E.UI50
FAX (206) 93?-6419
BroddT2@GMAIL.corn

DEFENDANT'S PRESENTENCE REPORT- 3



I

2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

ll

17

l3

t4

l5

16

17

l8

19

20

21

22

23

what the exact requirements of a TJOSA sentence were which is why he failed to complctc his

DOSA. It atso 4ppears from speaking with Mr. France that he not only has an alcohol problern,

but also has a problem with srack cosaine.

Mr. F'rance is statutorily eligible for a second DOSA. ITc respeotfully asks ihis Court to

grant this last oppornmitY.

REpLy T() STATE,S RECOMMENDATION: The State is asking this Court to impose

an exceptional sentence for Mr. Francc of l5 years. That total is 5 years for each victim rtuniug

consecutively based otr the aggmvator that two of tbe victincs were officers of the court and that

thssc acts wcrc in rctaliation for the porformance of their duties to the criminal justice system-

The State is also justifying this request by saying that Mr. France would be getting *free crimes"

because his offender score is over the maximum of 9,

The defense would ask that this Corut denythe State's requestto impose an exceptioml

sentcncc. This is not a cass where Mr. France should bc punished nrore thau the guidelines with

regard to his sentencE,

. White an offender score of 14 is indeed over the macimum score of 9, this is only a-s a

result of thcre bcing 9 current convictions which add 8 points to eaoh conviction along with the 6

that Mr. France comes to this case with. lt is not even double the amount of points from the

maldmum which would arguably justifu a doublc sentence-

Lsw Offlce of Brian J. Todd
6523 Cdiforoir Avcnuc SY #I79
Scadc, Wrshhgtoo 98 136- l8l3
(205) 778{?50
FAx (206)937-6419
Btodrhz@GMetiL.com
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I[. CONCLUSTON

For thcse reasons, the defenda.nt rcspoctfully roquEsts that this Court im5rcse a sentEnce

pursnant to the Drug Offender $entence Alternative of 27.t5 months in custody atd27 '75

months on cornmunitY custodY.

RESPECTFIII.LY subrnitted this 9th day of Novernber, 2011'

Brian J. Todd #29a36

DEFENDAI{T'S PRESENTENCE REPORT- 5

Law OIItce of Briao J. Todd
6523 CallftrniaAvrnue Slt 9179

Serttle, Wasbington 98116-1 833

eoo 7?8-0750
FAX (206) 937{419
Btodd72@GMAIL'com
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STATE OF WASHINGTON,

ResPondent,

V.

WILLIAM NEAL FRANCE,

No.67959-7-l

MANDATE

King County

Superior Court No' 11-1-017154 SEA

Court Action Required

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

)
)
)

Appellant.

THE STATE OF WASHINGTON TO: The superior court of the state of washington in and for King

CountY.

This is to certify that the opinion of the court of Appeals of the state of washington, Division

l, filed on september 9, 2}lg,became the decision terminating review of this court in the above

entitled case on March i11,2014. An order denying a petition for review was entered in the

supreme court on February 5,2014. This case is mandated to the superior court from which the

appeal was taken for further proceedings in accordance with the attached true copy of the opinion'

c: CaseY Grannis
Samantha Kanner
Hon. Steven Gonzalez

Court Action Required: The sentencing court or crim.inal,presiding judge is to place this matter on

the next available motion calendar for aciion consistent with the opinion'

lN TESTIMoNY WHEREoF, l have hereunto set my hand and

the seal of said at Seattle. this 21st daY of March,

60Py To-cutm,Y r^rr,,MA&&glg(
IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

DIVISION I

of the Court of APPeals, State of



FILED

'8f$'o[,t[I5&h'ofl['

rN rHE couRr oF A''EALS oF rHE srArE ot ifl,lls$frt,3o,bff ''
STATE OF WASHINGTON,

Respondent,

V.

WILLIAM NEAL FRANCE,

Appellant.

No,67959-7-l

DIVISION ONE

PUBLISHED OPINION

)
) rILED: September 9, 2013

)

AppELWcK, J. - France pleaded guilty to nine counts of felony harassment. He

had six prior felony convictions. The trial court imposed an exceptional sentence on all

nine counts, based in part on the 'Tree crimes" aggravator and in part on the officer of

the court aggravator. France argues that the free crimes aggravator could not lawfully

attach to three cUrrent offense5, because they increased his offender Scgre to a u9 or

more, and therefore did not go unpunished. we affirm France's exceptional sentence,

but remand for conectiorr of the two clerical drrors in the judgment and sentence'

FACTS

This appeal arises from william France',s 180 month exceptional sentence for

felony harassment of three women-,Anita Paulsen, Nina Beach, and Lisa Daugaard'

paulsen, a public defense attorney at The Dbfender Association, represented France in

a previous case. Beach was also involved in the previous case as France's social

worker. Unsatisfied with his representation, France began leaving graphic voicemails

with both women threatening to stalk them, sexually assault them, and then uput a

bullef in them. Paulsen notified Daugaard, deputy director at The Defender
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Association, who sent France a cease and desist lefter. France then began leaving

Daugaard similar threatening voicemails. All three women feared for their safety and

contacted the Seattle Police Department.

The State charged France by amended information with 16 counts of felony

harassment. The State alleged two aggravating factors: that France's conduct

manifested deliberate cruelty to the victims (all 16 counts) and was commifted against

officers of the court (counts 1-11).

The parties entered a plea agreement in which France agreed to plead guitty to

nine counts of felony harassment as fotlows: counts 3, 4, 6 (against Paulsen), counts 7,

g, 9 (against Daugaard), and counts 12,14,15 (against Beach)' !n exchange' the State

recommended dismissing the remaining seven counts and removing the deliberate

cruelty aggravator. France stipulated that the officer of the court aggravator applied to

the six counts (3' 4, 6, 7, 8' and 9) against Pautsen and Daugaard.

France also agreed that his prior felofy convictions counted as six points toward

his offender score. His cunent offenses counted as eight points, resutting in an offender

score of 14. Based on his offender score of 9 or more, the standard range sentence for

each count was 51 to 60 months. The plea statement provided: The sentences

imposed on counts 3, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, 12,14,[and] 't5 ' ' ' witt run concurently unless there

is a finding of substantial and compelliqst rPasons to do otherwise'' But' the state

indicated its intent to seek an exceptional sentence on all counts based on the free

crimes aggravator. As a result, the state recommended 180 months total confinement'

consisting of exceptionat consecutive sentences as follows: 60 months on counts 3' 4'

2
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6, concunent to each Othe[ 60 mofrthS on cOunts 7, 8, 9, concunent to each other; and

60 months on counts 12,14,15, concurrent to each other'

During the plea coiloquy, France acknowledged that the officer of the court

aggravator attached to counts 3, 4, 6, 7, 8, and 9' He atso acknowledged that no

statutory aggravator attached to counts 12, 14, and 15' The State explained its

sentence recommendation:

[B]asically on counts 12, 14and 15, there would be a base sentence of 60

months *itn no aggravator, Counts'3, 4 and-6 there would be 60 months

.onr".riir. U"""1- on the aglravator of officer of the court' and then
. counts ;,-g ;e g would rrn-Jonr"iutive to both of those based on the

aggravator of officer of the court'

However, the state reiterated that it would be seeking an exceptional sentence on the

additional basis that France's high offender soore resutted in some of his cunent

offensesgoingunpunished,essentiallyreceivingfreecrimes.

The trial court adopted the state's recommendations and sentenced France to

1g0 months confinement as follows: counts 3, 4, 6 shall run concurTent to each other

and consecutive to all others; counts 7' 8, I shall run concurrent to each other and

consecutfue to alt others; and counts 12, 14,15 shall run COnCUnent to each other and

consecutive to all others. The court justified the exceptional sentence based on the

frequency and truly alarming' nature of the voicemails' The court found little hope for

France's rehabilitation. Therefore, the function of the sentence "really comes down to

protection.' Moreover,

ilJn this case we are dealing witl the very underpinning of our.democracy'

and that is the right to pi;tettion and tonstittitional proteciion' and we

havededicatedofftceop.,'ro*ingthatdu!v,ap!.we.needtomakesure
that the!-aiE .it" ,"J .uie to perfJrm that duty without such threats'

3
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The court explained that it relied on both the free crimes aggravator and the officer of

the court aggravator, but that either alone would have been sufficient.

France appeals.

DISCUSSION

France challenges the trial courfs authority to impose an exceptional sentence

based on the free crimes aggravator on three of his current offenses. He also argues

that there is a clerical enor in the judgment and sentence stating that the officer of the

court aggravator attached to all nine counts. Lastly, he contends that the trial court

imposed a community custody condition when it had no statutory authority to do so.

l. Free Crimes Agqravatgr

A defendant's standard range sentence reaches its maximum timit at an offender

score of ,,g or more.' RCW g.g4A.s10. An offender score is computed based on both

prior and cunent convictions. RCW 9.94A.525(1). For the purposes of calculating an

offender score when imposing an exceptional sentence, culrent offenses are treated as

prior convictions. gtate v. Newlun , 142 Wn- App. 730, 742' 176 P'3d 529 (2008)'

where a defendant has multiple cunent offenses that result in an offender score greater

than nine, further increases in the offender score do not increase the stdndard sentence

range. Seq State vjlyarqdo ,164Wn.2d 556, 561-63,192 P.3d 345 (2008)' However'

a trial court may impose an exceptional sentence under the free crimes aggravator

when ,[uhe defendant has committed muttiple cunent offenses and the defendant's high

offender score results in some of the current offenses going unpunished.' RcW

g.g4A.535(2)(c). ln other words, if the number of cunent offenses results in the legal

conclusion that the defendants presumptive sentence is identical to that which would be
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imposed if the defendant had committed fewer current offenses, then the court may

impose an exceptional sentence. Ne]rylun , 142'Nn. App' at 743'

France's prior felony convictions contributed six points toward his offender score.

Three more current offenses were needed before France's offender score reached nine

points on the sentencing grid. Therefore, France contends, those three current offenses

were punished, because they increased his standard range sentence. Only six

remaining counts would go unpunished if France was sentenced within the standard

range. According to France, then, only six of his crimes are subject to an exceptional

sentence, because the free crimes aggravator cannot lav'rfully attach to the three

punished crimes. He contends that those three punished crimes must then run

concurenfly with the six unpunished counts. Therefore' he argues, his sentence should

be 12|months instead of 180 months, arid remand for resentencing is required to

rectifo the error.

To reverse an exceptional sentence, we must find: (1) under a clearly erroneous

standard, there is insufficient evidence in the record to support the reasons for imposing

an exceptionat sentence; (2) under a de n6vo standard, the reasons supplied by the

sentencing court do not justify a departure from the standard range; or (3) under an

abuse of discretion standard, the sentence is clearly excessive or clearly too lenient'

RCW 9.94A.585(4); stale v. Laut, 154 Wn.2d 85, 93, 110 P'3d 717 (2005)' The second

standard of review applies here, because France challenges the trial court's authority to

construct the exceptional sentence as it did. He does not argue that 180 months is

clearlY excessive.

5

I
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ln construing the free crimes aggravator, our primary duty is to ascertain and

carry out the legistature's intent. Lake v. U/oodcreek Homeowners Ass'n, 169 Wn.2d

516, 526, 243 p,3d 1283 (2OlO). Statutory interpretation begins with the statute's plain

meaning. ld. lf the statute's meaning is unambiguous, our inquiry ends. Stale.v.

Armendariz, 160 Wn.2d 106, 110, 156 P.3d 201 (2007). A statute is ambiguous when it

is susceptible to two or more reasonable intdrpretations. State v. Gonzalez, 168 Wn.2d

256,263,22A P.gd 131 (2010). However, a statute is not ambiguous merely because

different interpretations are conceivable. !d.

The free crimes aggravator is triggered when the.defendanfs high offenders@re

combines with multiple cunent offenses to ieave usome, of the current offenses going

unpunished." Rcw 9.94A.535(2Xc) (emphasis added). The legislature could have

specified that 'only those cunent offenses going unpunished are subiect to an

exceptional sentence.' But, it did not do so. Nor does the statute specify that the trial

court must find that all cunent offenses *orid go unpunished. Rather, use of the word

.some" contemplates a situation like France',s where some current offenses contribute

to the defendant's offender score and some go unpunished. Then, once the defendant

has some cunent offenses going unpUnished, the trial courfs discretion to impose an

exceptional sentence on all curent offunses is triggered. RCW 9.94A.535(2)(c) makes

no distinction between punished and unpunished crimes, because all current offenses

are subject to an exceptional sentence. Merely because France proposes a

conceivable interpretation of RCW 9.94A.535(2Xc) does not make it ambiguous' We

decline to read ambiguity into the statute where there is none.

6
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The trial court has "all but unbridled discretion"' in fashioning the structure and

lengith of an exceptionat sentence. State v...Halsev, 140 Wn. App. 313, 325, 165 P.3d

4Og (2007) (quoting State v. Creekmore, 55 Wn. App. 852, 864,7.83 P'2d 1068 (1989));

see also Law, 154 Wn.2d at 93. For instance, the trial court here could have imposed a

20 month sentence on each count, to run consecutively, achieving the same 180 month

sentence. or, the court coutd have sentenced France to 180 months on each count, to

run concunently. seg state v. Batista, '116 Wn.2d777,'785-86, 808 P.2d '1141 (1991)

(recognizing the trial oourt's authori$ to impose an exceptional sentence by lengthening

concurrent sentences or imposing consecutive sentences). The trial court here clearly

intended to impose an exceptionar sentence of 190 months and had authority to do so,

because France had re current offenses going unpunished.l

case law does not compel a different result. France relies primarily on @

stephens to argue that an exceptional sentence like the one here improperly penalizes

a defendant twice for the same crime. 116 Wn'2d 238, 803 P'2d 319 (1991)' overruled

in part bv state v. Hughes,154Wn.2d 118, '140, 110 P.3d 192 QA05)' abrooated on

other:orounds bv washinqton Y. Ruenco, 548 u.s' 212, 126 S' Ct' 2546' 165 L' Ed' 2d

411 (2006). !n stephens, the defendant commifted eight counts of second degree

-

1 The judgment and sentence states that counts 3, 4, and 6 "shall run concunent

to each other taili'-;";ecutive tq aff others" and counts 7 ' 8' and 9 'shall run

concurrent to each other [andl coris"rutiu" to ail others." France argues this is a

crericar errorr u"c"use it .ohnirtl witiiine court's oral ruling that counts "7,, 8, and I are

concunent with each other, but consecutive to the previous three counts.' However,

clerical ero* exist if, based on tte iecoro, ttr"lrogment does not embody the trial

courfs intention. S!eieJ.-B@, lig' wn. npp' iaizzo, 121 P'3d 755 (2005)' The

court clearly intended to impose oO_montns foi"each set of crimes, grouped by victim, to

run consecutveryio one another. rolnGrpi"t the judgment and sentence as a clerical

error thwarts that intention'
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burgtary. 11g Wn2d at239. Because of his high offender score, his presumptive

sentence would be the same had he committed only two burglaries instead of the eight.

lSL at 24142. The six ufree" burglaries justified an exceptional sentence of eight

concurent 96-month sentences. ld. at 299,246. The Washington Supreme Court

uphetd the sentence, reasoning that "although the crimes were counted in calculating

the offender Score, most of them had no effect on the sentence because Stephens'

score was ,9 or more' already. Thus, stephens woutd not be penalized twice if the

multiple crimes Were considered toWard an exceptional sentence'" Jd' air244' France

seizes upon this language. But, the stephens. court went on to hold that a defendant'

"being sentenced for multiple @! offenses, no one of which would wanant an

exceptional sentence, [rnay] receive an exceptional sentence based on the number of

crimes committed." lgL at24344'

Likewise, in State v. Brundaoe, the defendant committed muttipte current

offenses, including first and see,ond degree rape. 126 Wn. App. 55, 67,1o7 Psd742

(2005). Brundage's prior offenses resulted in eight offender score points ld' at 67' His

current unlawful possession of a firearm conviction added one point to his offender

score for a total of nine. Ig With an offender score of nine, Brundage's standard range

sentence for the first degree rape was 240 to 318 months' ld' at 61' 67' The second

degree rape conviction increased his offender score lo 12' ltL The sentencing grid

ends at nine, though, so Brundage's standard range sentence remained 240 to 318

months. ld. at 67. Because the second ddgree rape would go unpunished if the trial

court imposed a standard range sentence, an exceptional sentence was iustified to

ensure Brundage did not receive a free crime. ld. at 67, 69. The second degree rape
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conviction with an offender score of 12had a standard range of 210 to 280 months. ld.

at 61, 67, The court upheld an exceptional sentence of 498 months for the first degree

rape and 400 months for the second degreg rape, to run @ncurrently' ld. at 69' The

Brundage court did not consider the issue France argues here. Nevertheless, in that

case, one curent offense going unpunished iustified an exceptional sentence on bclh

current offenses. $ee id. lmposing an exceptional sentence for both crimes was

consistent with the legislature s stated purpose to "'[e]nsure that the punishment for a

criminal offense is proportionate to the seriousness of the offense and the offendels

criminal history."' !g!* (alteration in original) (quoting RCW 9'94A'010(1)'

six of France's cunent offenses would go unpunished if he received a standard

range sentence, triggering the judge's discretion to impose an exceptional sentence

basedonRCW9.94A.535(4(c).Weholdthatthetrialcourtactedwithinitsauthorityto

impose an exoeptional sentence on all nine counts of felony harassment'

ll. Glerical Error in the.Judoment and Sentence

Under,SPEGIALVERD|oTorFINDING(S),"thejudgmentandsentence

provided:'[X]Aggravatingcircumstancesastocount(s)lll,lv,vl'vtl'vlll'lx'xll'xlv'

)$/: oFFICER oF THE coURT AGGRAVAT.R., Frange stipulated that the offieer of

the court aggravator applied only to counts 3, 4. 6, 7, 8, and 9' The judgment and

sentence inconectly states that the aggravator attached to counts 12' 14' and 15' The

state concedes that this is a clerical enor. Accordingly, we remand to the trial court for

conection of this elror. In re P.-ers. Restraint of Maver, 128 wn' App' 694' 7A1' 117 P'3d

353 (2005).
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lll. No Gontract Order

France argues that the trial court imposed a community custody condition of no

contact when it lacked statutory authority to do so. !n the judgment and sentence, a box

was checked stating, 'TXl APPENDIX H for Community Custody conditions is attached

and incorporated herein." Appendix H is d no-contact order prohibiting France from

contacting the three viotirns. The sentencing Reform Act of 1981 (SRA) does not

authorize a court to impose community custody for felony harassment' see RGW

9.94A,701; gCe also ln re Postsentence RevieUr of Childers, 135 Wn' App' 37' 41' 143

P.3d 831 (2006).

However, the sRA does authorize trial courts to impose crime-related

prohibitions as a condition of sentence, independent of community custody' RCw

9.94A.505(8); State v. warren, 165 Wn,2 d 17, 92, 195 P.3d 940 (2008)' A no-contact

order is one such crime-related prohibition. ln re Pers' RestrLint of Rainev' 168 Wn'2d

367, 376, 22g P.gd 686 (2OlO). The record demonstrates that the court imposed the

no-contact order as a condition of sentence rather than a condition of community

custody. section 4.5 of the iudgment and sentence specifies: 'NO CONTACT: For the

maximum of 15 years, the defendant shall have no contact with see attached Appendix

H.' Section 4.7 lists community custody conditions, but is not checked' community

custody conditions are not checked later in the judgment, either. Appendix H says

nothing about community custody.. The court acknowledged in its oral ruling that it had

no authority to impose supervision, but was ordering no contact. And, the no'contact

order is scheduled to last onty the length of the sentence. For these reasons' we

10
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decline to vacate the no-contact order. We remand to the trial court to conect the

eroneous reference to community custody conditions.

We affi6n France's exceptional sentence, but remand for correction of the two

clerical errors in the judgment and sentence.

WE CONCUR:

11
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SUPERIOR COT'RT OT WASHINGTON FOR KING COUNTY

STATE OT WASIIINGTON,

vs.

WILLIAMNEAL FRANCE,

Defendant

TIIIS MAfflER having come on regularly before the undersigned judge of the above-

entitled court ulonthe motionof tbE State of Washingion, plaintitr, for an ordelamending the

Judgment ard Se,lrtence in the above €otitled cause, and the court being fulty advised in the

premises; now, tberefore,

II I8 HEREBY ORDERED, ADruDGED and DBCREED thatthe Iudgment and

Sentence shall be ,ruended, in accordance with the opinion of the Corrrt ofAppeols, in the

following manner:

In Section 2.1, entitled t'SpecialVerdictorFinding(sf, spbsecfion $ should.not include

coun6 XII, XIV, or fV.s aggravating oircumstances (officer of the court aggravator). This is a

co,rreotion of a oierical er:oi, as it is clear that atl parties were in agrcemeut &at tbe aggravating

cilcumstances only applied to csunts III, IV, Vt, \IIt asd VIU, as evidenced by the Sateraent of
Defendaat oa Plea of Guilty, section 7, page 10.

In Sec{iou 4J, entitled Community Custody, subsection (c), a box for Appeuttix H was

inadverreotly checked. As the appellate csurt note{ &is was ,m erroneous reference to

cornmgnity iustody conditions that do not ap'ply to the sentence in this oase. The Appeadix H

that was fUO *itf, *e Judgment aud Senteoce is hereby deleted. The No CorAct Order that was

filed rmder Seotion 4.5 is in effect, howsver:

NormMalergt
Prosecuting AttomeY
Xcgioad Juslicc Ccr&r
rl0l Four& Avtrr:s North

/

eoBY #$$iluil it'rr' -9-Ei-U813

Plaintr8

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

No. 11-1-01715-6 SEA

ORDER AI\4ENDING fUOClrrmVf
AND SEN1ENCE

Order Ameoding Juttgment and Setrtence - I
Kort,Warhlngm

ro.i[ED ]
'..*.V
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All other portions of the Judgment and Sontence, inoluding the confineme,ntperio{
rcmain in force.

Chief Criminal Deputy Prosecuting Attomey

Approved for entry:

NA*)
BrianJ. Tod4 WSBA f29436
Attomey for Defmdant

NormMaleng,
Ptosecuting AtbmeY
Regioat J$ticcCcfltcr
4oi Fou!& AvcouoNot&
Ksrt,WdilBtm 98032429

Presomted by:

OrderAmending Judgment ard Seffmce - 2



Certificate of Service by Electronic Mail

Today I directed electronic mail addressed to the attorneys for the petitioner,

Casey Grannis of Nielsen Broman & Koch PLLC containing a copy of the

State's Response to Personal Restraint Petition, in lN RE PERSONAL

RESTRAINT OF FRANCE. Cause No. 74507-7-!, in the Court of Appeals,

Division l, for the State of Washington.

I certify under penalty of perjury of the laws of the State of Washington that
the foregoing is true and correct.

Name - 
-=> Date

Done in Seattle, Washington




